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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE “GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the
GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on the GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017
(the "Year") to our shareholders.

RESULTS

After the completion of the various trading contracts, the
revenue for the Group reduced significantly during the Year to
approximately HK$121,667,000 as compared to approximately
HK$1,662,929,000 in 2016. The Group has continued to
develop business relationship with its business partners and
potential partners particularly in the PRC in order to increase
and explore new sources of income.

The Group experienced substantial decreases in the service fee
income from the energy management business, as a result, the
Group disposed the energy management business during the
year.

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit to approximately
HK$8,909,000 for the year as compared with approximately
HK$9,290,000 in 2016. The gross profit margin, however,
improved from 0.56% in the corresponding period in 2016
to 7.32% during the year because of the interest income
from loans receivables. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business so as to improve the
gross profit of the Group.

During the year, administrative expenses from continuing
operation incurred by the Group were approximately
HK$82,446,000 (2016: approximately HK$54,883,000). The
major component of the Group’s expenses were bad debt
written off, rent and rates, salaries and payroll, legal and
professional fees and depreciation. However, the Group
recorded a gain on disposal of subsidiaries for the energy
management business of approximately HK$17,129,000
during the Year (2016: loss on disposal of subsidiaries for
the lightning electromagnetic pulse business and energy
management business of approximately HK$7,226,000)
from its discontinued operation. Overall, net loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$67,199,000 (2016: approximately
HK$205,532,000).

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management remains the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium-
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of
the Group and the high demand for supply chain service in
mainland China, the Group has established many strategic
partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as to
undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the
services on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance
and storage.

In December 2016, the Group entered into a series of
contractual arrangement with the beneficial owner of Jin Yu
Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Company Limited (“Jin Yu Tang”)
to obtain an effective control of Jin Yu Tang. Jin Yu Tang is
an investment holding company and operates a small scale
fishery trading operation. Since the acquisition, Jin Yu Tang
contributed approximately HK$2,857,000 to the Group's
revenue.

Money lending business

During the year, the Group began to explore new opportunities
to broaden its source of income and expand the business
operations, e.g. the money lending business, in order to
generate profits and return for the Group and its shareholders.
The Group obtained a money lender license in Hong Kong
under the Money Lenders Ordinance through the acquisition
of a licensed entity in June 2016. The Group then commenced
its money lending business during the Year. As at the end
of the Year, unsecured loans totaling HK$87,000,000 were
granted to 6 individuals and 1 corporation. During the year,
depending on the financial strength of the various lenders, the
Group charged interest at rates which varied from 6% to 24%
per annum. The Group regularly assessed the recoverability
risk of its loan receivables portfolio to ensure that impairment
loss, if any, would be made in a timely manner. During the
year, the Group generated interest income of approximately
HK$8,185,000 from its money lending business which resulted
in a profit before tax of approximately HK$6,463,000.
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PROSPECT

With the lead of the management team, the Company is
actively exploring business opportunities in other sectors
to diversify risks and broaden the sources of income of the
Company. The Company has adequate resources to continue
with its business operations, and will continue to focus on its
corporate objective to develop current businesses in order to
strengthen its competitiveness, integrate its capital resources
and contribute a maximum wealth to our equity holders.

Noting that the supply chain management business is not
having a stable growth during the Year, the Company will pay
close attention to its performance and future development.
At the same time, the management will continuously monitor
and review the overall operation and financial performance of
the Group’s businesses so as to cope with the ever-changing
business environment. The management will keep proactively
seeking for other investment and business opportunities with
promising prospect to broaden the source of income of the
Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the Company
through making investments and/or acquiring business or
projects that have promising outlooks and prospects, and
with the Group’s new management team having extensive
experience in the marine fishing business, the Group will also
explore further in the marine fishing business.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all members of the
Board and staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group and to those who have supported us. We will continue
to make our best efforts in developing our businesses to
produce good economic results and better return for our
shareholders.

Liu Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

OPERATION REVIEW

Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management remains the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium-
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of
the Group and the high demand for supply chain service in
mainland China, the Group has established many strategic
partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as to
undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the
services on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance
and storage.

In December 2016, the Group entered into a series of
contractual arrangement with the beneficial owner of Jin
Yu Tang to obtain an effective control of Jin Yu Tang. Jin Yu
Tang is an investment holding company and operates a small
scale fishery trading operation. Since the acquisition, Jin Yu
Tang contributed approximately HK$2,857,000 to the Group's
revenue.

Money lending business

During the year, the Group began to explore new opportunities
to broaden its source of income and expand the business
operations, e.g. the money lending business, in order to
generate profits and return for the Group and its shareholders.
The Group obtained a money lender license in Hong Kong
under the Money Lenders Ordinance through the acquisition
of a licensed entity in June 2016. The Group then commenced
its money lending business during the Year. As at the end
of the Year, unsecured loans totaling HK$87,000,000 were
granted to 6 individuals and 1 corporation. During the year,
depending on the financial strength of the various lenders, the
Group charged interest at rates which varied from 6% to 24%
per annum. The Group regularly assessed the recoverability
risk of its loan receivables portfolio to ensure that impairment
loss, if any, would be made in a timely manner. During the
year, the Group generated interest income of approximately
HK$8,185,000 from its money lending business which resulted
in a profit before tax of approximately HK$6,463,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

After the completion of the various trading contracts, the
revenue for the Group reduced significantly during the Year to
approximately HK$121,667,000 as compared to approximately
HK$1,662,929,000 in 2016. The Group has continued to
develop business relationship with its business partners and
potential partners particularly in the PRC in order to increase
and explore new sources of income.

The Group experienced substantial decreases in the service fee
income from the energy management business, as a result, the
Group disposed the energy management business during the
year.

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit to approximately
HK$8,909,000 for the year as compared with approximately
HK$9,290,000 in 2016. The gross profit margin, however,
improved from 0.56% in the corresponding period in 2016
to 7.32% during the year because of the interest income
from loans receivables. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business so as to improve the
gross profit of the Group.

During the year, administrative expenses from continuing
operation incurred by the Group were approximately
HK$82,446,000 (2016: approximately HK$54,883,000). The
major component of the Group's expenses were bad debt
written off, rent and rates, salaries and payroll, legal and
professional fees and depreciation. However, the Group
recorded a gain on disposal of subsidiaries for the energy
management business of approximately HK$17,129,000
during the Year (2016: loss on disposal of subsidiaries for
the lightning electromagnetic pulse business and energy
management business of approximately HK$7,226,000)
from its discontinued operation. Overall, net loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$67,199,000 (2016: approximately
HK$205,532,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$326.1 million (2016: approximately
HK$344.8 million), including net cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$23.9 million (2016: approximately HK$7.4
million).

For the year, the Group financed its operations mainly with its
own working capital and issue of placing shares. There were
no general banking facilities as at 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

As at 31 March 2017, the gearing ratio (defined as the ratio
between total bank borrowings and total assets) was zero
(2016: Zero). The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31
March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Placing of new shares

1. On 17 August 2016, a share placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement A”) was entered into between the
Company and Kingston Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agent”), pursuant to which the Company had appointed
the Placing Agent to place, on a best effort basis, of up
to 335,760,000 new Shares (the “Placing Shares”) to
not less than six placees at HK$0.10 per Placing Share.
On 6 September 2016, 335,760,000 Placing Shares were
allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
Placing Agreement A.

The net proceeds arising from above placing amounted
to approximately HK$32.5 million, net of expenses, which
were used as general working capital of the money
lending business and HK$15 million each was lent to
two independent third parties with a monthly interest
rate of 1% with the maturity dates in August 2017. The
remaining HK$2.5 million were used to pay operating
expenses including salaries, travelling and entertainment
expenses.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated

17 August 2016 and 6 September 2016 respectively for
details.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. On 20 March 2017, a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement B”) was entered into between the Company
and the Placing Agent, pursuant to which the Company
had appointed the Placing Agent to place, on a best
effort basis, of up to 402,900,000 new Shares (the
“Placing Shares B”), to currently expected not less than
six placees at a price of HK$0.30 per Placing Shares B.
On 10 April 2017, 402,900,000 Placing Shares B were
allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
Placing Agreement B.

The net proceeds arising from the above placing
amounted to approximately HK$117.4 million, net
of expenses, which were used as to (i) approximately
HK$23.4 million for the capital commitment under a joint
venture agreement entered into between a subsidiary of
the Company and Khmer First Investment Holdings Group
Co., Ltd. dated 20 January 2017 for setting up a joint
venture company in Cambodia; and (ii) the remaining
HK$94 million as general working capital of the Group
with approximately HK$66.1 million to be applied for
the Group’s expansion of the supply chain operations
and approximately HK$22.5 million for the Group’s net
operation outlays.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20
March 2017 and 10 April 2017 respectively for further
details.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related
hedges

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"), United States Dollar (“USD")
and Renminbi (“RMB"). As such, the Group is aware of
the potential foreign currency risk that may arise from the
fluctuation of exchange rates between HKD, USD and RMB.
The Group adopts a conservative treasury policy with most of
the bank deposits being kept in HKD, or in the local currencies
of the operating subsidiaries to minimise exposure to foreign
exchange risks. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no
foreign exchange contracts, interests or currency swaps or
other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.

Charge on Group assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any charge on
its assets (2016: Nil).
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Segment information

An analysis of the Group’'s performance for the year by a
mixture of business lines and geographical locations is set out
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Outlook

Noting that the supply chain management business is not
having a stable growth during the year, the Company will pay
close attention to its performance and future development.
At the same time, the management will continuously monitor
and review the overall operation and financial performance of
the Group’s businesses so as to cope with the ever-changing
business environment. The management will keep proactively
seeking for other investment and business opportunities with
promising prospect to broaden the source of income of the
Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the Company
through making investments and/or acquiring business or
projects that have promising outlooks and prospects, and
with the Group’s new management team having extensive
experience in the marine fishing business, the Group will also
explore further in the marine fishing business.

Significant investments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group held investments in
securities in Hong Kong (collectively, the “Investments”)
with a market value of approximately HK$66,093,000
(2016:Nil), representing an investment portfolio of 8 (2016:
Nil) listed securities in Hong Kong, which accounted for
approximately 24% of the net assets of the Group. The Group
recorded net unrealised fair value gain and a realised loss on
disposal of approximately HK$7,144,000 and approximately
HK$1,293,000 respectively (2016: Nil) in respect of investment
in listed securities held for trading as at 31 March 2017.
The unrealised gain was caused by the changes in market
expectation and market performance from the PRC market and
the global economy.
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TRIWRAAR - E—+F=A=+—8B#A

The following table shows the listed securities held as at 31

March 2017: ZEWES:
Unrealised
% of gain (loss)
shareholdings Realised on fair value Fair value as
Number of inequity  gain (loss) change for Costof at31March % of net
Company Name Stock code shares held investment  for the year the year  acquisition 2017 assets Principal activities
AEEATE RoB-t#
BREREZRE RFEEEE #DRERE ZAZt-H hEERER
NEAER RORSE FERAHE BAlk BH(ER) B/ (BB) WEAE 2ATE ARl TEXH
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  EETT  BEFr EETR

China Best Group Holding 00370 40,000,000 0.55% - (271) 8,231 7,960 2.89% Trading of fuel oil, electronic devices and other commodities,

Limited the finance leasing business, the money lending business,
international air and sea freight forwarding and the provision
of logistics services, and trading of securities.

AERERRERAR EEMG ETRERAMER BERE HEXE BR
RERE LEERRENRBBUREEES -

Co-Prosperity Holdings 00707 29,388,000 0.61% - (1,082) 6,960 5,878 2.13% Processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics; trading
Limited of fabric and clothing; money lending; and securities

investment.

BEBEARERAF KAz NI DEREE ARAHERRKES HER

China Minsheng Drawin 00726 20,000,000 0.20% (1,241) - - - N/A Prefabricated construction work and property investment in
Technology Group Limited the PRC.

PRERMZEBERAA TER RPERRKRARETIREINERE

Leyou Technologies Holdings 01089 7,500,000 0.26% (53) 4,027 7,598 11,625 4.22% Trading and manufacturing of chicken meat products, animal
Limited feeds and chicken breeds.

ZERBRERERAR EERHERNER BNEHREE-

Sino Haijing Holdings 01106 60,840,000 0.59% - 2,344 7877 10,221 3.71% Manufacture and sale of packaging materials.

Limited

PEERERERAT HERREBLNA-

China Water Industry Group 01129 6,300,000 0.39% - 968 8,356 9,324 3.38% Provision of water supply and sewage treatment services;
Limited construction of water supply and sewage treatment

infrastructure; and exploitation and sale of renewable energy
in the PRC.

PEKXEERRAT EREREFHKRRESKERRE: BEKRSKEE
BB RAERHEBLLR.

Mega Expo Holdings Limited 01360 9,450,000 0.70% - 3,226 7,641 10,868 3.94% Organisation of trade shows and exhibitions, providing
andillary services and sub-contracting and management
services for exhibitions and trade shows.
BRESRERRES URARECRESRERERE
RBRHIBRERRY -

Chinese Energy Holdings 08009 42,100,000 1.95% - (2,784) 7,415 4,631 1.68% Provision of management services, investment in financial

Limited and investment products, general trading, provision of
factoring services and money lending.

EEWRERERAR REEERYE REAREBEIRAER —RE5H REFRE
PR Bk -

Global Energy Resources 08192 15,100,000 2.19% 1 716 4,871 5,587 2.03% Rental of energy-saving air-conditioners, trading business,
International Group operations of carbon emission trading platform and related
Limited services, money lending business and securities trading

business.

BREREREREEARR REHETR: EH5H SERINR ST REERE-
| HEABREFEREH.

(1,293) 7,144 58,949 66,094

Note: Wit

FEERER (BR) LRR-F—EZA=T-HZATEEIRER &
/(BB) WERARATEEMARA - NELETLE LUANEETH -

The realised loss for the year, unrealised gain/(loss) on fair value change, cost of acquisition and fair value as at 31 March
2017 in the above table have been rounded off. The aggregate sum of the rounded figures may not add up exactly to the
total figures shown above.
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The Hong Kong stock market has been volatile during the year.
Looking forward, the Board believes that the performance
of the listed equity securities will be dependent on market
sentiment which is susceptible to external market conditions
such as interest rate movements, geo-political conditions and
macro-economic performance. To mitigate the associated
financial risks, the Group will regularly review its investment
strategy and take appropriate steps in response to market
changes whenever necessary.

Except those as disclosed under sections above, the Group had
no significant investments, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.

Material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

On 20 January 2017, the Company announced that Jin Yu
Tang, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a joint venture agreement with Khmer First Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd. (BiRE— R EEREBGR A A]) for the
purpose of investing in fishing activities at Cambodian coastal
area, aquatic process, sale of fishing products, cultivation
in aquaculture and import and export trading (subject to
the approval of the relevant license from the Cambodian
government). Jin Yu Tang will subscribe for 800 Shares at par
value for a total subscription amount of 32,000 million Riels,
representing 80% of the issued shares of the joint venture
company.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 18 October
2011 (the "Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for
their contribution to the Group and/or enabling the Group to
recruit additional employees and retain existing employees and
to provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining
the long term business objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the employees, consultants, suppliers or customers of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including any independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

Future plans for material investments and expected
source of funding

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the annual report, the
Group did not have any plan for material investment or
acquisition of material capital assets as at 31 March 2017.
However, the Group is constantly looking for opportunities
for investments or capital assets to enhance the shareholders’
value.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017.
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Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 40 (2016: 43) employees
including directors. Total staff costs (excluding directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$7.2 million for
the Year (2016: approximately HK$12.4 million). Remuneration
is determined by reference to market terms and the
performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for
their contributions. Other benefits include contributions to
statutory mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees in
Hong Kong and basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical
insurance, work injury insurance and unemployment insurance
to its employees in the PRC.

Contractual arrangements

One of the business segments under development by the
Group is the marine fishing business which would be operated
under the contractual arrangement. This business was acquired
by the Group in December 2016. The following graph shows
the structure of the Group conducting this business as at 31
March 2017:

NN
The Company

100%

Super Heritage Limited
(HBELHE)
(BVI)

100%

SRWEEMARAT (B8)
Golden Thai Marine
Products Group Limited (HK)

100%
A A RINFEEZERERAF
RS RE (FRED)

Shenzhen Yuheng Trade
Management Co., Ltd
(PRC)

Registered owners
Mr. Hong Maoji (100%)

R 100%
100% (RIEEHLHE)

YT ERERR AR
()
Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen)
Fishery Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017

EE R HE B
R-E—+F=A=1+—HB KAEEEHR
T40HR (ZE—RF 43%)EE (BIEE
) ARFEFZHEIRA (TBIEESH
%) 4 AT 200,0007C ( ZF—7NF 8
#12,400,0007T ) ¥ BTy 2 BT IS IER K&
ERETHRER ERREHMET - AE
BREBEIAENEER  AEEEUE
FIETRAAEMENFRIEALTEBRE
B-Hih @A BERESEREELANET
BEMEAESHENERRATRHES R
BEFENRR  EABERE  TEHERR
PEE LN K

BRRY
AEEBAFRTPLERBENES —EE
BOBEAEHNRHEEE - AEER_F
—ARNETZAKRBZEL - TEBRTEE
“ELEFA=tHAAEEETRE
TR R -

(under contractual arrangement)



Management Discussion and Analysis

Under this business, the operators are required to obtain
the license (i.e. Far Ocean Fishing Enterprise issued by the
Agricultural Department (B3 &R F/AZE P )) to conduct
its business. Jin Yu Tang is the operating subsidiary of the
business holding the License. If Shenzhen Yuheng Trade
Management Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yuheng”) directly interested
in the equity interest in Jin Yu Tang, there will be a change
in enterprise nature of Jin Yu Tang and that the benefits and
tax concessions from the fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang is
eligible to participate will be restricted. Therefore the existing
fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang could undertake beyond the
permitted scope mentioned above will probably be affected.

Therefore in order to obtain the effective control on Jin
Yu Tang and the right to enjoy the economic benefits in
the business and assets of Jin Yu Tang, Shenzhen Yuheng
has entered into a set of control agreements (the “Control
Agreements”) with Jin Yu Tang and the existing shareholder
which remains effective since 1 December 2016. The Control
Agreements comprise (a) Loan Agreement; (b) Share Charge
Agreement; (c) Exclusive Purchase Agreement; (d) Shareholder’s
Power of Attorney Agreement; (e) Cooperation Framework
Agreement; (f) Technical Support Service Agreement; and (g)
Technical Research Service Agreement. Set out below are the
major terms and other relevant information of the Control
Agreements executed amongst Shenzhen Yuheng, Jin Yu Tang
and its respective shareholder and directors:

(a) Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the loan agreement executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Loan Agreement”), an interest free loan of
RMB15 million will be provided by Shenzhen Yuheng to
the existing shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, with no fixed
term of repayment. The loan is secured by a charge of the
shareholdings in Jin Yu Tang.
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(b) Share Charge Agreement

(c)

Pursuant to the share charge executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Share Charge Agreement”), the existing
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang pledged his entire equity
interests in Jin Yu Tang to Shenzhen Yuheng, he will
convey to Shenzhen Yuheng all his interests in the
dividend and distributions for securing the repayment
obligations of the shareholders of Jin Yu Tang under the
loan agreement.

Pursuant to the PRC rules, in the event that Jin Yu Tang
goes into liquidation, Shenzhen Yuheng as the beneficial
owner of the charged share interest has the priority in
recovering the repayment of the loan.

Exclusive Purchase Agreement

For the purposes of obtaining the rights to purchase all
(or part) of the equity interest and/or asset in Jin Yu Tang,
Shenzhen Yuheng entered into an exclusive purchase
agreement on 1 December 2016 (the “Exclusive Purchase
Agreement”) with the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang,
pursuant to which, an irrevocable and exclusive right was
granted by the shareholder to Shenzhen Yuheng (or its
nominee) to purchase all (or part) of the shareholders’
equity interest in Jin Yu Tang. The consideration will
be determined based on the minimum amount of
consideration as permissible under the then PRC laws and
regulations or, in case of equity interest, the value of the
registered capital.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Agreement, unless
with a prior written consent from Shenzhen Yuheng, the
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang would not vote in favour of
any resolutions in relation to any decision on the sale,
assignment, transfer or any other method of dealing with
the equity interest of Jin Yu Tang.
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(d) Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement

(e)

Pursuant to the shareholder's power of attorney
agreement executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Power
of Attorney Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang shall appoint the
person(s) nominated by Shenzhen Yuheng as directors to
the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang thereby creating an
effective control on the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang.
In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng has the right to remove
directors, the general manager and legal representatives
of each of Jin Yu Tang and replace them with its
nominees as it thinks fit.

The shareholder of Jin Yu Tang undertook to Shenzhen
Yuheng that as the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, he
irrevocably assigned his voting rights to Shenzhen
Yuheng (or such other person as directed by Shenzhen
Yuheng) and to vote in accordance with the directions
of Shenzhen Yuheng on any resolution proposed at a
general meeting of the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang.

In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng is authorised to exercise
the shareholders’ rights in Jin Yu Tang including exercise
of voting rights, rights to nominate directors of Jin Yu
Tang, the rights to sell or transfer all or any of their
respective shareholding in Jin Yu Tang.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive cooperative framework
agreement executed on 1 December 2016 (the
“Cooperative Framework Agreement”), Shenzhen Yuheng
will set up a management committee with Jin Yu Tang,
and both parties will occupy two positions. Shenzhen
Yuheng will provide technical research and technical
support services for deepwater aquatic products to Jin Yu
Tang, in return for service fees. The proportion of service
fees will eventually be determined by the management
committee in accordance with the agreed terms of the
Cooperative Framework Agreement. Shenzhen Yuheng
may, at its sole discretion, terminate Cooperative
Framework Agreement upon giving one month’s written
notice in advance to Jin Yu Tang at any time.
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(f)

(9)

Technical Support Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical support service agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Support
Service Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will receive technical
support services from Shenzhen Yuheng, which
includes: business system and management technology,
business technology, customer service technology,
services permitted by PRC laws, etc. Jin Yu Tang shall
pay technical fee and any other costs arising from
technical fee on a monthly basis during the terms of the
Agreement. The fee is 100% of the monthly income, and
the total monthly fee should not exceed 100% of the
monthly income.

Technical Research Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical research service agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical
Research Service Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will obtain
technological research and development services from
Shenzhen Yuheng to assist Jin Yu Tang in developing the
application software required for the operation of fishing
business, and will pay monthly service fee to Shenzhen
Yuheng. The service fee is based on a certain proportion
of the revenue from the service of Jin Yu Tang.

In accordance with the terms of the Control Agreements,
Shenzhen Yuheng is able to govern the financial and operating
policies of Jin Yu Tang and Shenzhen Yuheng can enjoy all of
the economic benefits of Jin Yu Tang because:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholder’s Power of
Attorney Agreement;

the general meeting of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholders’ Power of
Attorney Agreement; and

all the benefits arising from the entire equity interests
in Jin Yu Tang is entirely conveyed to Shenzhen Yuheng
pursuant to the Share Charge Agreement, Cooperative
Framework Agreement and Loan Agreement.

The Group believes that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, the Control Agreements give the Group control
over Jin Yu Tang in substance. Accordingly, Jin Yu Tang is
accounted for as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the business of marine
fishing is not yet commenced by Jin Yu Tang and it is
principally engaged in supply chain management services
business.

Risk of the contractual arrangement

There is inherited risk of the contractual arrangement. The
Group has no equity ownership interest in Jin Yu Tang and
it relies on contractual arrangements to control and operate
the business of Jin Yu Tang under the Control Agreements.
However such contractual arrangements may not be as
effective in providing control over Jin Yu Tang as compared
with direct ownership since (i) there is no assurance that the
Control Agreements could comply with future changes in
the regulatory requirements in the PRC; (ii) these contractual
arrangements will not preserve Shenzhen Yuheng’s control in
the occurrence of certain events which may be outside the
control of Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders; and (iii)
potential conflicts of interest between the Group and Jin Yu
Tang and its respective shareholders exists and whether the
shareholders and directors of Jin Yu Tang will act completely in
the interest of the Group is outside the control of the Group.
Any of the above may materially and adversely affect the
validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the control of the
Group and Shenzhen Yuheng on Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders. Any inability, or limitation on Shenzhen Yuheng’s
ability to enforce the contractual arrangements with the Jin
Yu Tang and its respective shareholders or to take any legal
remedies under the PRC law could disrupt the business and
have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results
of operations and prospects of this business. Whether such
conflicts of interest could be effectively managed or otherwise
be resolved in the favour of the Group and its subsidiaries will
be crucial to the effectiveness of contractual arrangements. In
the event the disagreement and dispute cannot be resolved
under friendly negotiation and proceed to arbitration, there is
no guarantee that the final decision under arbitration would
be in favour of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

In order to mitigate the risk of the contractual arrangement,
the Group has since its acquisition of this business in
December 2016 implemented the following measures to
ensure the sound and effective operation of the Control
Agreements:

—  the Board has nominated its representatives to Shenzhen
Yuheng and Jin Yu Tang to ensure that there is a
continuous and effective control over Jin Yu Tang’s
operation and management. The Group has also obtained
the directors’ undertaking as detailed above;

—  suitable management has been assigned to Jin Yu Tang
to report regularly to the Board for review in relation to
major issues arising from implementation of the Control
Agreements;

—  suitable reporting system in line with the Group’s
financial reporting practice in the PRC have also been in
place to ensure that the Group would be full access and
control over the book and record of Jin Yu Tang and to
obtain periodic financial information to ensure proper
financial record are kept;

—  the proper record system for shareholders’ meeting and
directors’ meeting of Jin Yu Tang has worked effectively
and will continue to be in place, and a copy of these
notice for meeting and resolution will also be passed to
Shenzhen Yuheng and the Group before and after the
meeting to keep the Group informed on all important
development of Jin Yu Tang; and

—  the Group has worked closely and will continue to work
closely with the PRC legal advisors and the management
of the Jin Yu Tang on the update of rules and regulations
of the PRC to monitor the continue compliance of the
rules and regulations by Jin Yu Tang as to its conduct of
business and contractual arrangement.

In the event if the PRC government further release the
restriction on far ocean fishing operation to be undertaken by
foreign company, the Group will as soon as possible exercise
the exclusive right under the Control Agreements to acquire
the direct equity interest in Jin Yu Tang and unwind the
contractual structure.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongsheng, aged 54, is an executive Director,
chairman, the chief executive officer of the Company and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He completed
a professional programme in International Economics and
Trading from Beijing Training University of Economics and
Technology* (It REE R M HH1EEET), the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") in 1998. He also holds a qualification as
a senior economist in the PRC. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of
experience in import and export trading, logistics, corporate
strategic management, project management and finance
business. He is an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM (stock code: 8125).

Lord Cao Yunde, aged 55, Cambodian Chinese, is an
executive Director and Co-Chairman. He is the former
President of Cambodian People’s Party and advisor (minister
level) to Prince Chea Sim President of the Senate of Cambodia.
He has been awarded the title of Lord and holds Cambodian
diplomatic passport. He is a graduate tutor in the PRC. He is
currently an advisor to the Agriculture and Rural Development
Council of the Kingdom of Cambodia, president of the
Cambodian International Cooperation Agency, and chairman
of the board of directors of Khmer Holding Group. He is a
substantial shareholder and a director of the Group's joint
venture company set up in Cambodia.

In 2009, Lord Cao was appointed by King Norodom Sihamoni
as assistant to Prince Chea Sim, former President of the Senate
of Cambodia. In 2010, he was promoted to advisor (state
secretary level) to Prince Chea Sim, former President of the
Senate of Cambodia and was recognised as “2010 Soul of
China e Ten Outstanding Figures*” (201071 % 2 % o + A f¢
I AY) and received the “Award for Special Contribution to
the PRC Economic Growth*” (B4 EZZFRIERAD
#%) and the “Integrity China e Innovative Pioneer Award*"
(GRAER B o BIFT L8 A ¥ 2E). On 22 January 2011, with the
application made by Prince Chea Sim and the approval of
King Norodom Sihamoni, Lord Cao Yunde joined Cambodian
nationality and was promoted to advisor (minister level) to
Prince Chea Sim, former President of the Senate of Cambodia.
He was granted the title of Lord by King Norodom Sihamoni
in June 2011, was appointed as vice president of assistant
team for Prince Chea Sim, former President of the Senate of
Cambodia and received the National Development Medal of
the Kingdom of Cambodia in 2012, and received the National
Grand Medal of Honor of the Kingdom of Cambodia in 2013.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

ESRPTANERERE

Mr. Gan Weiming, aged 56, is an executive Director. He
graduated from Zhanjiang Shuichan College* (& T /K E £
BT)(now known as Guangdong Ocean University &3R8 ¥
A E) with a Bachelor's Degree in Marine Power Plant (f#4ff
&) /)% E). He was a bureau chief of Shenzhen Ocean and
Fishery Bureau* (&Y /& B/# % F), Shenzhen Economics
and Trade Information Ocean and Fishery Bureau* (&3l 4%
BB L FHEAERE), and Ocean Economics Development
Bureau* (B F#L &2 EEZ) during the period from January
2003 to February 2013. Mr. Gan has been working for a long
time in the administration execution and general management
in ocean and fishery industry. He retired in February 2013
according to the early retirement plan for civil servants in the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Fan Guocheng, aged 51, is an executive Director. He
graduated from Guangzhou Financial Higher Special School
(currently known as Guangdong University of Finance and
Economics) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in
1988. He is an accountant and holds an accounting qualification
certificate issued by Shenzhen Finance Bureau. Mr. Fan has
accumulated nearly 30 years of extensive experience in
financial management and has held various positions relating
to financial management, accounting and financial accounting
in many different industries in Shenzhen. He is currently the
chief financial officer in Shenzhen of Noble Century Investment
Holdings Ltd. (a Hong Kong-listed company, stock code: 2322)
and a director of Noble Century KS Group Limited, its subsidiary.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

Mr. Chen Liang, aged 47, is an executive Director, compliance
officer and authorised representative of the Company. He
holds a Doctoral Degree in Coal, Oil and Gas Geology and
Exploration from China University of Petroleum (Beijing). He
worked for various oil companies and research institutes in
China and abroad. Since December 2011 to August 2013,
Mr. Chen has been chief executive officer & executive director
of China Natural Investment Company Limited (“China
Natural Investment”) (stock code: 8250), now renamed “Silk
Road Energy Services Group Limited” a Company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM"” and the “Stock Exchange”
respectively). In August 2013, Mr. Chen resigned as chief
executive officer and remained as an executive director
of China Natural Investment until March 2016. From May
2013 to March 2015, Mr. Chen was an executive director
of Birmingham International Holdings Limited (stock code:
2309 now renamed “Birmingham Sports Holdings Ltd.”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Since August 2015 to now, Mr. Chen has been an independent
non- executive director of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8009), a Company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chen has accumulated over 20 years of working
experience in energy and natural resource industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director, chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He obtained a master degree
in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over 25 years of experience in the finance
and accounting fields and has been a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and Association of
International Accountants. Mr. Pang is also registered as
Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong.

Mr. Pang has been engaged in provision of consultancy
services in accounting and financial management. He worked
for accounting firms and was responsible for the audits of
a number of new listing applicants and companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Pang has been engaging in
senior financial and company secretarial positions in several
companies of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
since June 2014.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

ESRPTANERERE

Ms. Li Mei, aged 37, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Ms. Li holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration in Financial Management from York University,
United States of America. She has extensive experience in
financial services business. Ms. Li is a licensed person under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance to carry on type 1 (dealing
in securities) regulated activity. Ms. Li is an executive director
of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(stock code: 8085), whose share are listed on GEM.

Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle, aged 45, is an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. She
graduated from Williams Business College in Australia with
a diploma of Business (Information Technology). She was
accredited with a Microsoft Certified Professional + Internet,
and obtained a diploma for Microsoft Certified Solutions
Expert (MCSE) in 2001. She also received a diploma in TCM
Cosmetology A % E A H % /& from Heilongjiang University
of Chinese Medicine Ef )T E K2 in 2003. She has
extensive management experience in retails services industries,
such as beauty servicing, wine and food and beverage.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis, aged 58, has over 30 years of
experience in the field of financial and general management.
Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree
of Arts in Economics and Social Studies from the University
of Manchester. Mr. Lam was the company secretary of China
Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited (stock code: 6898) from
June 2013 to July 2016. Mr. Lam was the general manager
and director of Solartech International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1166) from April 2009 to December 2009, the financial
controller of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited
(stock code: 3318) from March 2004 to February 2009, the
financial controller, qualified accountant, company secretary
and authorized representative of Kinetana Hong Kong Herbal
Pharmaceutical Limited from July 2001 to September 2002.
Mr. Lam worked for Pam and Frank Industrial Co. Ltd (stock
code: 0431, now renamed as Greater China Financial Holdings
Limited) between October 1991 and November 2000 and
his last position was senior vice president and had extensive
working experience in an international accounting firm.
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The Directors of the Company hereby present the annual
report and the audited financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results
by reporting segments and geographical areas of operations
for the Year is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in this annual report on
pages 79 and 80.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
the material factors underlying its financial performance and
financial position can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on
pages 7 to 9 and pages 10 to 24 respectively. Details of the
Company’s share option scheme are provided on page 17 of
the “Management Discussion and Analysis”. An analysis of the
Group's financial risk management objectives and policies is
provided in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
An indication of likely future development in the Company’s
business is set out on page 14 of the “Management Discussion
and Analysis”. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHSE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published result of the
Group for each of the last five financial years and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31
March 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2013.
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Consolidated results mEXE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-HLEE

(In HK$'000) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(WEETTAEmN) “Z-+f ZE-RF —Z-1F —Z-QmFE —Z2-ZF
Continuing operation FREEXRK
Revenue WA 121,667 1,662,929 1,632,858 13,022 34,529
Loss before taxation from continuing  #HBELEBBHABE (82,862) (197,018) (59,849) (58,952) (66,573)

operation
Income tax expenses EREY (1,466) (1,622) - (14) (2,189)
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from EREEBRFR

discontinued operations w5/ (ER) 17,129 (7,226) (1,426) (20,710) 2,089
Loss for the year KEEEHE (67,199)  (205,866) (61,275) (79,676) (66,673)
Attributable to: AT AL

Equity holders of the Company AARRIERBA (67,199)  (205,532) (59,185) (76,292) (77,654)

Non-controlling interests FEIERE R - (334) (2,090) (3,384) 10,981

(67,199) (205,866) (61,275) (79,676) (66,673)
Consolidated assets and liabilities and non-controlling SAEE BEERIIERER
interests
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+-8
(In HK$'000) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(UEEFTAEN) “E-t& Z—F-Rf ZF-nf Z—EF-WmF —F-Z=F
Total assets BEE 326,143 344,763 819,881 181,908 177,909
Total liabilities wak (50,500) (17,002) (341,791) (28,720) (30,063)
Non-controlling interests RS - - 2,251 (1,176) (4,272)
275,643 327,761 480,341 152,012 143,574
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability. The Group’s commitment to protect the
environment is well reflected by the continuous efforts in
promoting green measures and awareness in our daily business
operations. The Group’'s business is subject to national,
provincial and local environmental laws and regulations of the
PRC. During the Year, so far as the Directors are aware, there
were no material breach of applicable environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC that have a significant adverse impact
on the business and operations of the Group.

The Group also encourages environmental protection and
promote awareness towards environmental protection to the
employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling
and reducing. It implements green office practices such
as double-sided printing and copying, setting up recycling
bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt
effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
waste reduction and energy saving. The Group will review its
environmental practices from time to time and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move towards
enhancing environmental sustainability.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements could lead to the suspension or termination
of operating licences. The Group has been allocating system
and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules
and regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships
with requlators effectively through effective communications.
For the Year, the Group has complied, to the best of the
directors’ knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are
reasonable remunerated and also continues to improve and
regularly review and update its policies on remuneration and
benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual
basis.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
GROUP’S BUSINESS

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects
ability to meet business objectives arising from the movement
in market prices. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events.

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests
with every function at divisional and departmental levels. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The
management will identify and assess key operational exposures
regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.
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Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of the
Group would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract
and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel.

Financial Risk

The Group's also faces financial risks including interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Details of these financial risks are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company's
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017 are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed under the section headed ”Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and investments during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to the existing shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Except for placing of new shares disclosed in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares, nor did the Company or any of
its subsidiaries purchase or sell any such shares during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 of the
annual report and in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, no reserves of the Company were
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie
(2016: Nil), as computed in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. In addition, the Company's
share premium account had a balance of approximately
HK$516,585,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$487,389,000).

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017

WERHERE QT

REEENwm AT REEIN N
RS Z A A8 KM 8 A R R IR E B
BEREBHLESERE-

BERBERE

AR FIRY 7 FIAD A o B ) 3 4R R
18 52 78 ELHERO 1530 X IBSORE A 2 AR
B BIBAD B ARE ([ BEH

e

BE EOSREERQANLHE
%

W IR R R DT | R R AR -
ARG - D R 4 B H AR E TR
{53+ T 2% 23 ) o L AE o] JB8 2% ) 7 3 4%
B o A BRI -

(GRS
AEBERARRNFERAFENEHF
BEHNFREEBIENGAERE
RN ER A MBS RR M 37 -

A {4t 5k 7% 8
NR-ZE—+F=A=+—B BEBAEE
—NWN\—FREENBRETE AR
BHEEVEBRENER/ XEWHAS
K (ZE—RF|E) o b XRF 2 &5
BEERR -_ZT—+tFE-A=+—HZ&H
475 #516,585,0007C (ZFE—"F : 478
#487,389,0007T ) °



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 93% (2016: 70%) of the
total revenue for the Year. Revenue attributable to the largest
customer accounted for 32% (2016: 24%) of the total revenue
for the Year.

During the Year, purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 99% (2016: 72%) of the total
purchases for the Year. Purchases from the Group's largest
supplier or accounted for 41% (2016: 34%) of the total
purchases for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or any
of their close associates nor any Shareholders which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the
Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director,
Chairman and chief
executive officer)

(appointed as executive Director
and Chairman on 7 September
2016 and appointed as chief
executive officer on 16 May
2017)

Lord Cao Yunde (appointed on 20 February 2017)
(Co-Chairman)

Mr. Gan Weiming (appointed on 14 September 2016)

Mr. Fan Guocheng (appointed on 16 May 2017)

Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 20 February 2017)

Dr. Chu Ping Hang (appointed on 7 September 2016

and resigned on 16 May 2017)
Mr. Wu Zhinan (resigned on 14 September 2016)
Ms. Huang He (resigned on 20 February 2017)
Mr. Chen Jiang (resigned on 2 December 2016)

Mr. Huang Johnny (resigned on 4 May 2016)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, (appointed on 16 May 2017)

Paton

Ms. Li Mei

Ms. Li Yuen Fong, (appointed on 14 September 2016)
Michelle

Mr. Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016)

Mr. Chui Man Lung,
Everett

(resigned on 16 May 2017)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), Ms. Li Mei will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM"). Pursuant to bye-law 83(2) of
the Bye-laws, Mr. Liu Rongsheng, Lord Cao Yunde, Mr. Fan
Guocheng, Mr. Chen Liang and Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton will
retire from office at the AGM. All the above retiring Directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of
its independent non-executive Directors the annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent as
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND COMPANY SECRETARY'’S
BIOGRAPHIES
The biographical details of the Directors and Company

Secretary of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 28 of the
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors (other than Ms. Li Mei who is not
appointed for a specific term) has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one to three
years commencing from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not
less than one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the transactions during the Year between the Group
and connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
in which a Director has beneficial interest are set out in the
section “Related Party Transactions” of this report and note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year, nor was
there any transaction, arrangements or contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries for the Year. There
was also no contract of significance between the Company or
one of the subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any
of its subsidiaries.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Except otherwise disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no transactions incurred
during the Year which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 17 and
note 26 to the consolidated financial statement.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme since its adoption.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses, which they shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any taxation relief available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

The changes in Directors’ information are set out below:

Name of Director

BEEps
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Details of changes

BEFIE

Mr. Liu Rongsheng

BlRAEgsE

Dr. Chu Ping Hang

ARBEL

Mr. Chen Liang
PRS2 5 4
Mr. Wu Zhinan

REMEE
Mr. Gan Weiming

HERLEE

Mr. Liu Weiliang

BRERTE

Ms. Li Yuen Fong,
Michelle

FREF L

Appointed as executive Director and Chairman of the Board on 7 September
2016

Appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 16 May 2017
RZE-—REFNRLREZERVITEETRESTSEIE
RZE—+FAR T NBEEERERATERIEREZESEE

Appointed as executive Director on 7 September 2016

Appointed as Chief Executive Officer, compliance officer and authorized
representative on 2 December 2016

Resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 20 February 2017

Resigned as executive Director, compliance officer and authorized representative
on 16 May 2017

RZEBE-RFNALBEZERNITES
RIE-RFT_AZREZERERFRATE BEETEREERLR
R_E—+tF _A-+HBETEFERITE
RIE—+FARTRABERTES ERFTERRERR

Appointed as executive Director on 20 February 2017

Appointed as compliance officer and authorized representative on 16 May 2017
RZE—+tF A+ ARETANTES
RIZE—+tFAR T NAEZERERIERKERR

Resigned as executive Director on 14 September 2016
RIE-—RFARATHBRBEERTES

Appointed as executive Director on 14 September 2016

Appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 20 February 2017

Resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 16 May 2017
RZEBE-—RENA+THREZERNITES
R_E—+F A+ HEZERERATE
R_TE—+FRRA T+ BABEEEHNTE

Resigned as independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 14
September 2016
RIZ-RFAATOEBEBLINTEETNEZZES FHEZES IR
FEERRBZKE

Appointed as independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 14
September 2016
RIZE—ARFNATHNAEBZERBUNNTESREZLZES THEES
MRREZEGEEAZKE
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Name of Director

BEEpSR

Details of changes

BEFHE

Mr. Chen Jiang

B ST 5 &

Lord Cao Yunde
BEEEE
Ms. Huang He

=BT

Mr. Fan Guocheng

BRI A

Mr. Chui Man Lung,
Everett

RXEEEE

Mr. Pang Pui Hung,
Paton

ZImERE

Resigned as the Chairman of the Board and appointed as the Co-Chief
Executive Officer on 7 September 2016

Resigned as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer and ceased to be
compliance officer, and authorized representative on 2 December 2016
R_E-RFARLABEEEFE IR RERERBMEERNTE
RIE-—RFT_AZRBERATEERERRATE U TBREEREIER
RERRK

Appointed as executive Director and Co-Chairman on 20 February 2017
R_B—+tF_A_+tHEZERRTEETLRBELFE

Resigned as executive Director on 20 February 2017
R_E—+HFE A - +HBEIHNTES

Appointed as executive Director on 16 May 2017
RZEBE—+FRAA+TNBEZERBITES

Resigned as independent non-executive Director, chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on
16 May 2017
R-ZE—+FREATABEREBUINTEFEEZZES FHEES IR
HEEERXE

Appointed as independent non-executive Director, chairman of each of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and on 16 May 2017
R_E—+FRAT A ABRZEARBIUNTEFTHEZZESGRFMNES
S
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of the SFO (including interest or short positions which
they had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
securities transactions by directors were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Name of Director Capacity

BEEps 54

ordinary Shares held

RFEEBERBE HERTRABNES L
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share capital

Beneficial owner

BEEBEAA

Mr. Gan Weiming
HERLEE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which
were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which he is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by directors
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Directors, Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or of any other body corporate granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of
persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company,
or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares B z2HEE
Approximate
Number of  percentage of issued
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary Shares held share capital
IR R & 47 BEEERYE HERTREAMAB S L
Liu Yi Beneficial owner 437,500,000 21.71
E S EnEAA 437,500,000 21.71
A Plus Capital Management
Limited (note 1) Investment manager 222,000,000 11.02
A Plus Capital Management
Limited (Fa%1) BREEBEA 222,000,000 11.02
Tiger Capital Fund SPC
— Tiger Global SP
("Tiger Capital”) (note 1) Beneficial owner 222,000,000 11.02
Tiger Capital Fund SPC
— Tiger Global SP
([Tiger Capital /) (KizF1) BEmWEBA 222,000,000 11.02
Avia Asset Management Ltd Investment manager 249,900,000 12.40
Avia Asset Management Ltd KEEEBA 249,900,000 12.40
Full House Asset Management
Company Limited Investment manager 222,000,000 11.02
Full House Asset Management
Company Limited KEEEA 222,000,000 11.02
Notes : Kt et
(1) According to the information available on the website of the M WEBIMEWH LOTRHER

Stock Exchange, 222,000,000 Shares held by Tiger Capital as
beneficial owner and Tiger Capital is wholly owned by A Plus
Capital Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, so far as is
known to any Directors, none of any persons had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who was directly
or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose
interests or short positions were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

222 OO0,000HQHQ% M Tiger Capital{E &
BB AEA  MTiger CapitalHA Plus
Capital Management Limited2 & # A °
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
substantial shareholders, as at 31 March 2017, no other
person is individually and/or collectively entitled to exercise
or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power
at the general meetings of the Company and are able, as a
practicable manner, to direct or influence the management of
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this report, there is a sufficient public float of the
issued Shares (i.e. at least 25% the issued Shares being held by
the public) as required under the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the Year and thereafter up to the date of this report.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the Year (2016: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this report
The director who has an interest in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules is as
follows:

Nature of business

RB#E

Director Name of company

gz NAER

REXESF ZRRER

R EXFEERBEEZRRMERIN R
—EtF=A=t—H #IEEMAL
BRI K, AR ERAADNARRAE
TSR HITTEES % S A H IR SR HE - AL
A BRI ST AERATERRRNE
Ee

EHARERE
BEAARAENAMER UHEER
RBEBHAFN RAFEREZRES
AFEBHAEILL BEITROEBEEIR
THRABRENEHARARERE (2D
25%ME BTGB RARIFEE) -

o &p
?ﬁ TA
AEBRAFETEENESMEMBR
ZE—RFE)

EENBFERR 2ES

REBFAREEAREBRS B5NHE
AREBEREENBBEEKRFHATERE
PR T 2 K (BRASEBEBIN) R
ERERIZER ETRAEN.0MEETHE
FfEmmT

Nature of Interests

BHEME

Mr. Liu Rongsheng

BB ("Royal Century”) and its subsidiaries ~ MEEH

CRERERERAR(CRER]) R
) NS

As Mr. Liu Rongsheng is the executive director and chief
executive officer of Royal Century and has not involved in the
daily operation of the subsidiaries of Royal Century which are
operating the money lending business, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently to, and at arm’s length
from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above none of the Directors was interested
in any business (apart from the Group’s business) which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on page 48 to page 61 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) on 18 October 2001, with written terms of
reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
financial reporting process and internal control of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprised the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Li Mei and Ms. Li Yuen
Fong, Michelle. During the Year, the Audit Committee held
four meetings to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, and to provide advice and recommendations to the
Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent Event

(i) On 10 April 2017, the Company has completed the
placing of 402,900,000 placing shares to independent
third parties, at the placing price of HK$0.3 per
placing share. The net proceed from the placing are
approximately HK$117.4 million. After the completion,
the issued share capital of the Company is increased to
2,417,475,513 ordinary shares.

(i) On 25 May 2017, Yu Heng Shipping (Hainan) Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a shipbuilding agreement with a Shipbuilder, an
independent third party, to construct eight fishing vessels
at a consideration of RMB12.7 million for each new
vessel, with an aggregate consideration of RMB101.6
million (equivalent to approximately HK$114.1 million).
Payment of the consideration will be made in six
installments according to the stages of construction
of the eight fishing vessels. Up to the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the construction has
not been completed.
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(iii)

On 29 May 2017, Jin Yu Tang, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with two vendors (the “Vendor”), both are
independent third parties, in relation to acquisition of
70% equity interest in Shenzhen Qisen Fishery Company
Limited (”Shenzhen Qisen”), a company incorporated
in the PRC, for a total consideration of RMB60.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$68.4 million).

Shenzhen Qisen is principally engaged in marine fishing
business and holds a ocean fishing license granted by the
Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC.

The consideration shall be settled by cash of RMB10
million (equivalent to approximately HK$11.2 million)
payable to the Vendor and by issue of the zero coupon
convertible bonds, at a conversion price of HK$0.24 per
share with a total of 238,338,000 conversion shares, in
the principal amount of approximately HK$57.2 million
by the Company.

On 29 May 2017, the Company has entered into
the subscription agreement with the Subscriber (an
independent third party), Mr. Liu Rongsheng (chairman,
chief executive officer and an executive director of the
Company) and Mr. Liu Yi (a substantial shareholder of
the Company) as guarantors, to which the Subscriber
has agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$100 million.

The convertible bonds shall carry the rights to convert
into conversion shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.24 per conversion share. A maximum number of
416,666,667 conversion shares will be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all conversion rights.

Save as disclosed above, change of directors disclosed under
the section of “Corporation Information” on page 3 and note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had no
material event subsequent to the end of reporting period and
up to the date of this report.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

On 10 April 2017, the Company announced that Mazars CPA
Limited has resigned as auditors of the Group with effect from
7 April 2017 and Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
was appointed as auditors of the Group with effect from 10
April 2017 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Mazars CPA Limited.

Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit
Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited as the auditor
and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no change of the
independent auditors for the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Liu Rongsheng
Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 June 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the Year. The Company has applied
the principles in the CG Code and complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code for the Year, save and except
for the following:

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that
independent non-executive Director and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders. Ms. Li
Mei and Mr. Liu Weiliang were not able to attend the AGM
held on 5 August 2016 (the “2016 AGM") due to other
business engagement. Ms. Li Mei and Ms. Li Yuen Fong,
Michelle were not able to attend the special general meeting
of the Company held on 6 March 2017 and Ms. Li Mei was
not able to attend the special general meeting of the Company
held on 18 October 2016 due to other business engagement.
Other Board members who attended the 2016 AGM and
all the special general meetings were already of sufficient
calibre and number for answering questions raised by the
Shareholders at the 2016 AGM and all the special general
meetings.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made a specific enquiry
with all the Directors, each of them confirmed that he/she had
complied with such code of conduct and the required standard
of dealings regarding securities transactions throughout the
Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business
development, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly financial
statements for the Board's approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance
with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.
During the Year and up to date of this report, the Board
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director,
Chairman and chief
executive officer)

(appointed as executive Director
and Chairman on 7 September
2016 and appointed as chief
executive officer on 16 May
2017)

Lord Cao Yunde (appointed on 20 February 2017)
(Co-Chairman)
Mr. Gan Weiming
Mr. Fan Guocheng

Mr. Chen Liang

Dr. Chu Ping Hang

(appointed on 14 September 2016)
(appointed on 16 May 2017)
(appointed on 20 February 2017)
(appointed on 7 September 2016
and resigned on 16 May 2017)
(resigned on 14 September 2016)
(resigned on 20 February 2017)
(resigned on 2 December 2016)
(resigned on 4 May 2016)

Mr. Wu Zhinan
Ms. Huang He
Mr. Chen Jiang
Mr. Huang Johnny

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, (appointed on 16 May 2017)
Paton

Ms. Li Mei

Ms. Li Yuen Fong,
Michelle

Mr. Liu Weiliang

Mr. Chui Man Lung,

Everett

(appointed on 14 September 2016)

(resigned on 14 September 2016)
(resigned on 16 May 2017)
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The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 25
to 28 of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. Save as
disclosed above, there is no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company appointed three independent non-executive
Directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of Shareholders. Each of them has been appointed
for a term of one to three years commencing on the date of
appointment, which will continue thereafter until terminated
by either party giving the other not less than one month’s
notice. Every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and is eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his/her independence. Based on such
confirmations of independence, the Company considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Board meets on
other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter is required.

During the Year, 25 Board meetings and an AGM were held.
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Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board EEeXNENFAFE L ESEER LR
members during the Year are as follows: BREFIBAAT -
Board General
meetings meetings
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
Name of Directors attend attend
ExgeE RBRRAE®
BHE/ BdHE/S
REREE GERUE
Esns ZERYE Z28RHE
Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (appointed as executive Director and 13/14 2/2
(executive Director, Chairman Chairman on 7 September 2016 and
and chief executive officer) appointed as chief executive officer
on 16 May 2017)
BleRESE (HITEF FEFERE (RZE—NFAA+tHAEZAERNTEFH
#}ITE) FEER-FE—tFAA+ HEZERE
BH#HITE)
Lord Cao Yunde (Co-Chairman) (appointed on 20 February 2017) 0/2 0/1
BEEHE (BELE) (RZE—+tF_H-_1THEZF)
Mr. Gan Weiming (appointed on 14 September 2016) 12/13 1/2
HERLE (RZF—NREFNA+ABEZE)
Mr. Fan Guocheng* (appointed on 16 May 2017) n/a n/a
3B B o A (R=ZF—tFRAHT NHEZF)
Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 20 February 2017) 2/2 0/1
fRoe (RZF—+F-_A=1+HEZ(F)
Dr. Chu Ping Hang (appointed on 7 September 2016 and 14/14 2/2
resigned on 16 May 2017)
KEGEHEL (RZE-—RNFANALtHEZARR-FT—+
FAH+NEFET)
Mr. Chen Jiang (resigned on 2 December 2016) 13/15 2/2
BRI A& (R=ZF—ANEFF+=ZHZHEF)
Mr. Wu Zhinan (resigned on 14 September 2016) 11/12 0/1
REMEE (RZF—NEFNATHEEFE)
Ms. Huang He (resigned on 20 February 2017) 22/22 2/2
"L (R=—F—+F_-_F -1 HET)
Mr. Huang Johnny (resigned on 4 May 2016) 0/1 0/0
BEXBEERE (RZZE—NEAHMNHBT)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIYXHTES:
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton* (appointed on 16 May 2017) n/a n/a
L3 o (R=ZFE—tFRAHT NHEZF)
Ms. Li Mei 13/25 0/3
Fig L
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016) 12/13 1/2
& T (RZE—NFNHATHBEZE)
Mr. Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016) 9/12 01
BRREE (RZFB—NF/NH+HEHEFHE)
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017) 25/25 3/3
RN BERE (RZE—+FAH+/NAFE)
* Not applicable * i A
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Up to the date of this report, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development by
attending training courses or reading related materials/in house
briefing on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations as follows:

EEENREEERER

RIFLEEATRIN SRR FEA6.51%
EREFELEBEFXERNBERNLE
MRE 2 B R NEREEELEA
BEEEARYAGMBZBERATAESS
FHER -EE2AHREEN 2BEFCE
BEFEATEBELEBERRRIIZHEIIR
RABEERAMH ARERE 285
BERER:

Reading
materials/
In house
briefing/
training
Name of Directors courses
B MR
REERE,
BEEnA AR E
Executive Directors:
HITES
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (appointed as executive Director and Chairman on 7 v
(executive Director, Chairman September 2016 and appointed as chief executive officer
and chief executive officer) on 16 May 2017)
Bl ERE (HITEF FREFERE (RZE-—NFAAtAEZERNTEFHFFRERRZ
HITE) E—+FRATNABEZEREEHITE)
Lord Cao Yunde (Co-Chairman) (appointed on 20 February 2017) v
BEEERE (BELE) (RZFE—tF-_HA=-1+HEZF)
Mr. Gan Weiming (appointed on 14 September 2016) v
HEALEE (RZFB—NEFENA+HABEZEE)
Mr. Fan Guocheng* (appointed on 16 May 2017) n/a
3B B o A (R=ZFE—tFRAHT NHEZF)
Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 20 February 2017) v
fRe e (RZFE—t+tF-_HA=1+HEZF)
Dr. Chu Ping Hang (appointed on 7 September 2016 and resigned on 16 May v/
2017)
KEEEL (RZB—NFAA+-AEZERR -FT—+FRA+N
H#E)
Mr. Wu Zhinan (resigned on 14 September 2016) v
REBEE (RZZE—NEFENHTHBFFET)
Ms. Huang He (resigned on 20 February 2017) V4
BB L (R—FE—+F_-_H_-+HET)
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Reading
materials/
In house
briefing/
training
Name of Directors courses
BIEM B
RIBEHE
EEgE EIRE
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIYFHTES:
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton* (appointed on 16 May 2017) n/a
ke o (R=ZZFE—tFRA+NHEZE)
Ms. Li Mei Ve
L+
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016) V4
T (RZF-—NEFAATHBEZT)
Mr. Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016) v
BER %S (R=ZF—XNEFENA+HABE)
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017) v
RXBESEE (R=ZF—tFAHATNHEE)
* Not applicable * i A
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEEREZSTILEE

The Board values diversity as a factor in selecting candidates to
serve on the Board, and believes that the diversity which exists
in its composition provides significant benefits to the Board
and the Company.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which relates to the selection of candidates
for the Board. The Board believes that a key success factor of
an effective Board is that it comprises a range and balance
of skills, experience, knowledge and independence, with
individuals that work as a team. The Board Diversity Policy was
adopted to ensure that diversity in its broadest sense continues
to remain a feature of the Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the
responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Rongsheng, being the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director, is responsible for providing advice for
the overall management and strategic development and
overseeing the operation of the Board.

EZgUEREAEANEFTERERS L
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The Company appointed several executive Directors as the
Chief Executive Officer during the Year. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the Group’s overall management,
corporate development, strategic planning and the supervision
of day-to-day operation.

The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of
power and authority.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees
and the Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board
committees named above are in line with the GEM Listing
Rules and are posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January
2006 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee presently comprises
three members, all being independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton, serving as the chairman,
Ms. Li Mei and Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board for its final determination
on the specific remuneration packages of all Directors,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the
Year to review the remuneration package of the Directors
and senior management. Details of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are as follows:

TRERBRSE

FMEES

FMEEBER -_TTAF—ARY  YEH
R EEATAINEESI B BERE -
FHMZEEREME=RREMAK 285
BYFNTESR DAY DL (X
) FRLLRFRI KL

TR EE B AN ERESTZRES
MG RRETREFSRHER &
EEYNG RASENRBEBERIA
BiE 2 mE-

RAFEE HMEZ B SR B3>
HEEMSAEEB2HFHEAS -KEL
FHFMEZEEER L FRU N

=L
[1]
S
o I

Number of meetings

Members attended/Eligible to attend

RE BHE SEREEZEEHE

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (appointed on 16 May 2017) n/a
(chairman)*

EMESEE (FE) * (RZE—+tFAH T NAEZE)

Ms. Li Mei 3/3

P+

Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016) 0/0

& T (RZFE—NRFNA+HAREZE)

Mr. Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016) 3/3

ZBR A (RZF—NEFENATHEEE)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017) 3/3

TR (R=ZFE—+tFAHTNAFHT)

*  Not applicable * TEA

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEFSRAEEEZFM

MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company for the Year are set out in notes
7 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARBEERDNERENNEE 2 5
HBRHENRAMBRRMET N30
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Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the senior management (other than
the Directors) for the Year by band is set out below:

AR (GBY)

Remuneration bands (in HK$)

BIBECEEATAZFANEXB.1.5 SR
ERE (BRI NAFEZFETF SR
HRIE AT

Number of individuals

AB

Nil to 1,000,000 ## 21,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23
March 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee presently
comprises three members, namely Mr. Liu Rongsheng,
an executive Director, serving as the chairman, and two
independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Li Mei and Ms. Li
Yuen Fong, Michelle.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors. The Board
takes into consideration criteria such as the expertise and
experience of the relevant candidates, the market situation and
applicable laws and regulations when considering new director
appointments.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the Year to
review the structure and composition of the Board as well as
the Board Diversity Policy and made recommendations on the
appointment and re-appointment of retiring Directors. Details
of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are
as follows:

REZEE
KARBER-_ZE——F=A-+=HKL
REZES MEEABESREFTELE
ERTHI-IRHLEEERNAR-_RKER
DR ABRITESRRELE(ER)
AR BB IERITEETE LT TR
Frte

RAZBETIRAANEFTZANESHE
THEREFERIER -EFERNEE
ZEFEEREBARREAZERME
8 MR SBRED RO R FRE

WAEE FHEARRTZRERUR
HEFEZRBRARNUREFRNES
TALEE Y ARBEEE L EEREH
EERGERETA REALEREEAR
BHZBHEDT

Number of meetings

Members attended/Eligible to attend
B8 BEHE SEREEZEREE
Mr. Liu Rongsheng* (appointed on 16 May 2017)

(chairman) n/a
BIERHERE (FFE)* (RZF—t+tFRA+NBEZE)
Ms. Li Mei 3/3
Figt
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016) 0/0
FRF LT (RZF—NFNA+HAREZE)
Mr. Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016) 3/3
ZEREE (RZF—NEFENATHEEE)
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017) 3/3
RXBESRAE (RZZFE—+tFAHT/NAFE)
*  Not applicable * TEH
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) on 18 October 2001, with written terms of
reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
financial reporting process and internal control of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprised the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Li Mei and Ms. Li Yuen
Fong, Michelle. During the Year, the Audit Committee held
four meetings to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, and to provide advice and recommendations to the
Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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Number of meetings

Members attended/Eligible to attend

K& BHE SEREEZEEHE

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton* (appointed on 16 May 2017) n/a
(chairman)*

EMERE (FE) * (RZFE—tFRA+AEZF)

Ms. Li Mei 3/4

Figt

Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016) 2/2

FRF UL (R=ZF—NEFNATHAREZE)

Mr. Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016) 2/2

ZIER KL (RZF—NEFENATHEHEEE)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017) 4/4

(& (RZFE—+FAHT/NAFFE)

*  Not applicable * TEA

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the first
and third quarterly results and interim results for the
Year, the annual results of the Group for the Year and the
accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group and
recommended to the Board for considering the re-appointment
of independent auditor at the 2016 AGM.
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The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee at its meeting held on 21 June 2017 before
submission to the Board for approval. The members of the
Audit Committee considered that the results were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and the GEM
Listing Rules and sufficient disclosure had been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the
consolidated financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the content of the auditor’s
report.

The Company has appointed Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditor of the Group to fill the causal vacancy
following the resignation of Mazars CPA Limited on 10 April
2017. The Board was authorised by the Shareholders at the
2016 AGM to determine the remuneration of the independent
auditor of the Company. The fees charged by Reanda Lau &
Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited for the statutory audit and non-
audit assignments of the Group for the year amounted to
approximately HK$500,000 and HK$50,000 respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) was an external service provider, and
his primary corporate contact person was the chairman of
the Board for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the CG
Code. All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure the Board procedures, and all
applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary is to ensure a good information
flow within the Board and between the Board and senior
management of the Company, to provide advice to the Board
in relation to the Directors’ obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and applicable laws and regulations and to assist the
Board in implementing the corporate governance practices.
Mr. Fung Nam Shan has attended 15-hour training to fulfill the
requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal
controls and risk management for reviewing the effectiveness
of these controls annually. Internal control systems are
designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and the
risk to which it is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does
not consider to establish an internal audit team at present.
However, the key control procedures established by the Group
are day-to-day supervision of the business by the executive
Directors, supported by the managers responsible for the
operation and the key division support functions of finance,
information system and human resources. The key elements
of internal controls described below have been in place
throughout the Year:

—  procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and
payments;

—  regular financial information provided to management for
reviewing the Group's performance;

- clearly defined management structure and lines of
responsibility.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. Within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board should proceed to convene such meeting.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
or put forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The
contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited

Address: Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax No.: 852-3956 4882
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To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders shall submit a written notice of those proposals
with detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at
the above address.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the proposed resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make
any query that they may have with respect to the Company.
They can also send their enquiries to the Board through these
means. The contact details of the Company are provided in
this report, the “Corporate Information” section of this annual
report and the Company’s website.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns that
they may have with the Board or the management directly.
Board members and appropriate senior staff of the Group are
available at the meetings to answer any questions raised by
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the
Year. In preparing the financial statements, the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been
adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used and
applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquires to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws except the
change of Company’s name.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR - #HERERBRE

SCOPE

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report issued by China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
highlighting its ESG performance, with disclosure reference
made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix
20 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations (supply chain management and money lending,
which account for 100% of the Group's revenue) in Hong
Kong and Shenzhen offices from 1 April 2016 to 31 March
2017, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group
to report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and to
review areas of attention which will help the business meets its
potential growth and be prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at info@chinaoceanfishing.hk.

THE COMPANY’'S COMMITMENT ON ESG

The supply chain management and money lending are the
core business focus of the Group during the reporting period.
The Group offers middle-party service between suppliers
and customers with the extensive business networks and
resources, assisting SMEs in various industries to minimise their
overall operation cost. The Group’s innovative industrial chain
integrated platform is an enterprise combining intellectual
capital, financial capital, resource capital and dynamic supply
chain technology capital. For money lending allows the Group
and shareholders to obtain considerable profits and returns.
In June 2016, the Group obtained the Hong Kong Money
Lender’s license under the Money Lenders Ordinance by
acquiring a subsidiary. Being a listed company, members of the
Board of Directors commit to achieving profit targets, to lead
with actions by being social responsible, making efficient use
of resources, and helping to create a brighter future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A. Environmental

1.

Emissions

The supply chain business mainly involves the
matching of suppliers and vendors in seafood and
electronic product industry, does not involve in
any production process, thus the environmental
pollution and impact of the Group’'s business
operation in offices is minimal. Nevertheless, we
integrated environmental friendly practices in
our daily operation, nourishing a responsible and
green office environment, which complies with
applicable laws and regulations. When selecting
company vehicles, fuel efficiency and reliability
will be considered in the future to reduce fuel
consumption as well as air pollutants.

Use of Resources

The Group promises to maximise the use of
daylight to reduce consumption from excessive
lighting. Although central air conditioner is used
for offices and managed by the Management
Office of the office buildings, employees are
reminded to switch off all the air conditioners,
lights, equipment before leaving work. Energy
efficient electrical appliances with Grade 1
energy label under the Mandatory Energy
Efficiency Labelling Scheme by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department of Hong
Kong is preferred during procurement. Waste
from business operation was mainly paper
waste and general office waste. Employees are
also reminded to print paper on both sides and
reuse recycled papers for their draft works.
Paper saving tips are also placed next to copier
machines as reminders.

Water

The Group's water consumption is managed
by the Management Office of the office
buildings, therefore respective data is not
available. However, it is noteworthy that water
consumption of its operation is insignificant.
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3. The Environment and Natural Resources

With a supply chain business model, the Group
strives to operate in a manner consistent with
environmental protection. We care about the
impacts caused by climate changes and we
commit to take every step to reduce potential
environmental impacts posed by the Group.

B. Social
1. Employment and Labour Practices
(i) Employment

The Group ensures all employees are
fully aware of terms and conditions of
employment and shall comply with the
Laws of Hong Kong as far as they may be
applicable in conjunction with the personal
policies. The Group’s Staff Handbook lists
out comprehensive information regarding
hours of work, rest days, probation,
termination, salary administration,
various types of leave and applications,
fringe benefits (medical scheme, MPF,
compensation insurance, reimbursement
on expenses incurred on behalf of the
company).

Appraisal

Annual performance appraisal is
conducted with employees to evaluate
their performance and to help them
achieving with potentials and tackling
areas where improvements can be made.
It is the Group’s policy to offer internal
promotion to employees, whenever
possible, depending on availability of
vacancy and their appraisal results.

Equal Opportunity

The Group’s anti-discrimination policy
ensures that employees are not
discriminated on the basis of gender,
age, marital status, ethnic background,
religion, nationality and disability, and they
shall have equal opportunity in terms of
employment and recruitment decisions.
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(ii)

(iii)
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Health and Safety

Health and safety at work are the interest
and responsibility of both the Group and
employees. To tie in with the Group’s
Occupational Health and Safety Policy, the
Group commits to provide a safe working
environment and to comply with relevant
laws and regulations, through regularly
reviewing and improving safety measures
and providing internal safety trainings
for all employees. In return, employees
are required to take reasonable care
for the health and safety of themselves
and of others, and they shall report to
department head if any unsafe conditions
occur.

Fire extinguisher and fire escape route are
clearly placed at workplace. Fire drill will
be practiced from time to time offered
by the Management Office of the office
building and employees are required to
attend as per the Company’s schedule.

Development and Training

It is the Group’s policy to provide career
training and development opportunities
to employees in accordance with their
growth potential and job interest. To equip
employees with knowledge and skills as
required from their job duties, to meet
business growth and expectation and to
adapt to the newest market trend, the
Group provides training opportunities for
every level of employees, internally and
with external organizations. The Group
actively promotes effective corporate
governance by arranging the senior
management and supervisors to attend
various seminar conducted by regulators
and other professional organizations, on
topics such as best practice and advices
on corporate governance, sensitive
information related to stock price, risk
management and latest listing regulations.

(ii)

(iii)
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(iv)

Labour Standard

The Group has strict recruitment
procedure to prevent child or forced
labour. Human Resources Department
of the Group is responsible for
implementing and reviewing all matters
related to recruitment, remuneration
standard, training and development,
and other benefits, making sure the
Group complies with applicable national
and local labour laws and regulations
such as the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China. All employees should
submit their certificate(s) and personal
information before the commencement of
employment.

2. Operating Practices

(i)

(ii)

Supply Chain Management
Environmental and social performance
have been integrated in key criteria
when choosing quality and stable supply
chain buyers. Standardized procedure
has been established on fixed pricing
and order flow, creating a sophisticated
business relation between demand side
and suppliers. Suppliers are selected
through tendering process to achieve the
best quotation, and maintain the highest
standard for products and services, at
the same time, minimising the potential
impacts towards the environment and the
society.

Product Responsibility

The Group puts every effort in ensuring
product quality meet customers’
satisfaction. Standard procedure for
recalling quality defective products is in
place, and is reviewed by the management
on a regular basis.
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All employees shall declare advantages
and gifts offered from suppliers or
customers. We highly respect property
right (including intellectual property) and
privacy. Employees shall comply with laws
and regulations applicable to locations
where business operates on the collection,
holding, processing, disclosure and the use
of personal data.

Anti-corruption

The Group has set out rules, ethics and
discipline to fight against corruption.
Employees may not solicit or accept,
without the approval of the Company,
for their personal benefit or advantage,
in money or anything from customers,
contractors, suppliers or any other persons
having business relations with the Group
as in inducement to or reward for doing
or not doing an act in relation to the
business of the Group. If the employee is
found guilty of misconduct such as theft,
fraud, dishonesty, serious neglect of duty,
habitually late for duty or any conduct
considered prejudicial to the Group, the
employee will be summarily dismissed or
will be warned of the offence committed
either verbally or in writing prior to
any disciplinary action. There were no
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or
employees during the reporting period.
The Group plans to further strength the
organization’s risk management towards
the bribery and corruption through annual
review by the Board of Directors.

3. Community

(i)

Community Investment

The Group has not participated in any
community investment in the reporting
period and the senior management will
discuss and consider possible activities
to participate or organizations to partner
with that benefits the society in the next
reporting year.
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I. REANDA

REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG (HK) CPA LIMITED
FRZEZRG (BB EMEBRERAS

To the shareholders of

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited

(formerly known as “Sky Forever Supply Chain Management
Group Limited”)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 79 to 168, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Disposal of Energy Management Segment
o Recoverability of trade and loan receivables

e Acquisition of subsidiary and goodwill assessment
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
FAREETEE (&)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Disposal of Energy Management Segment

On 27 September 2016, the Group entered
into an agreement to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of Media Magic Technology
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as “Media Magic”) to an independent third
party, at a consideration of HK$100,000. Upon
completion of the disposal, the Group no longer
engaged in the energy management business.

The Group recorded a gain of HK$17.1
million from the disposal of Media Magic as
Discontinued Operations, and the disposal
is material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, hence we considered
the disposal a key audit matter.

Related disclosures about Disposal of Media
Magic are included in note 10 Discontinued
Operations to the consolidated financial
statements, which disclose the details in relation
to the disposal of Media Magic.

FgFTER

Our procedures included, amongst others, checking
relevant documents regarding completion of the
disposal, collection of consideration, and evaluating the
accounting treatment. We also assessed the Group’s
disclosures in relation to the disposal of Media Magic.

By Fat W EEEREFTER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade and loans receivables

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had trade and
loans receivables of HK$116 million and HK$92
million respectively, and the bad debts written
off of trade receivables amounted to HK$46
million.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise mainly
receivables for supply chain management
services business. Loan receivables of the Group
comprise mainly receivables for money lending
business.

Management assessed the recoverability of
trade and loans receivables by reviewing
customers’ aging profile, credit history and
status of subsequent settlement, and determine
whether an impairment provision is required.

For the purpose of impairment assessment,
significant judgement and assumptions,
including the credit risks of customers, the
timing and amount of realisation of these
receivables, are required for the identification of
impairment events and the determination of the
impairment charge, as such we considered this
to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of
trade and loans receivables include:

verified the balances of trade and loans receivables
by requesting and receiving confirmations on a
sample basis;

tested aging of trade and loans receivable balances
at year end on a sample basis;

obtained a list of long outstanding receivables
and identified any debtors with financial difficulty
through discussion with management;

assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with
management and latest correspondence with
customers; and

assessed the recoverability of the balances by

comparing the outstanding amounts as at year end
against subsequent settlements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Acquisition of subsidiary and goodwill assessment

On 1 December 2016, the Group entered into
a series of contractual arrangements with the
vendor, which enable the Group to have control
over Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Company
Limited (“Jin Yu Tang”). The goodwill arising on
this acquisition amounted to HK$5.5 million.

Management assessed goodwill for potential
impairment as at 31 March 2017 by comparing
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated with the
recoverable amount determined by assessing
the value-in-use by preparing a discounted
cash flow forecast. Preparing a discounted cash
flow forecast involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, in particular in
forecasting revenue growth and operating profit
and in determining an appropriate discount
rate, as such we considered this is a key audit
matter.

Related disclosures about Principal Accounting
Policies and Goodwill are included in note
3 and note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our audit procedures in relation to the acquisition of
subsidiary and potential impairment of goodwill include:

Obtained and reviewed the related documents of
the contractual arrangements made by the Group
in order to assess the accounting implications
of the transactions on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group;

checked the consideration paid for the acquisition
by the Group to bank statements.

compared the accounting policies of Jin Yu Tang
against those of the Group and assessed the
adjustments made for alignment;

checked the intercompany balances and
transactions between Jin Yu Tang and the Group
to assess the accuracy and completeness of the
elimination adjustments;

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used;

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry;

Performing sensitivity analyses on the key
assumptions such as the growth rates and discount
rates as these are the key assumptions against
which the value-in-use calculations are most
sensitive to; and

Testing source data to supporting evidence
on a sample basis, such as approved budgets
and available market data and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Group’s 2017 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS’ AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai

Practising Certificate Number P01886

Hong Kong, 21 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
—E—tF —E-RF
Ktat BT T BEFIT
Continuing operations FERSE K
Revenue g 5 121,667 1,662,929
Cost of services rendered and cost 1EHRE K AR EEEY
of goods sold 2R (112,758) (1,653,639)
Gross profit EF 8,909 9,290
Other revenue Hipl s 5 2 510
Other income Hip A 76 21
Selling and distribution costs SHE XD AR (2,939) (10,747)
Administrative expenses THRAX (82,446) (54,883)
Finance costs Bl & B AR (1,278) -
Net unrealised profit on financial  #FBEFZAFEIEZS
assets at fair value through profit  FiE& &E 7 A& B IR & TR 58
or loss 7,144 -
Other operating expenses He gz (13,109) (132,398)
Share of results of associates FERE: & N A sE - (8,811)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWMB QAR Z W 779 -
Loss before taxation from BERSEEKRBAIESE
continuing operations 6 (82,862) (197,018)
Income tax expenses Frigfim X 9 (1,466) (1,622)
Loss for the year from BEKEXEBFRER
continuing operations (84,328) (198,640)
Discontinued operations BRIEETR
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIEEBFRNRF,
discontinued operations (E8) 10 17,129 (7,226)
Loss for the year FRER (67,199) (205,866)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEHBER

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-=

—tFE=FA=+—HItFE

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E-RF
HtaE BETFT BT T
Other comprehensive loss for FRHEMEEEE:
the year:
Items that may be reclassified A e B D2 B e b
subsequently to profit or loss: EH:
Exchange differences on b AR VTR H EE
consolidation (5,925) 11)
Share of other comprehensive loss fE{GEE & A T H i 2 HEEE
of associates 15 - (293)
(5,925) (304)
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EFEARH
for the year (73,124) (206,170)
Loss attributable to: UTATEEEE:
Equity holders of the Company RANBIREREE A 12 (67,199) (205,532)
Non-controlling interests JEFE IS RE S - (334)
(67,199) (205,866)
Total comprehensive loss UTATEGZESERERE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company KRB EREE A (73,124) (205,785)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M AR - (385)
(73,124) (206,170)
Loss per share BREE 12
From continuing and REFEMRERIEES
discontinued operations
Basic HAR (HK3.60 cents &fll) (HK13.57 cents /&fll)
Diluted s (HK3.60 cents #1li) (HK13.57 cents i&{l)
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic BN (HK4.51 cents &ll) (HK13.11 cents &lL)
Diluted e (HK4.51 cents &4ll) (HK13.11 cents /&fll)

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016-2017




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R®E

At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+F=H=4+—H

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
—E—tF —ERF
Bt BT T BT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B MR 13 1,142 5,559
Intangible assets EmEAE 14 91 109
Other assets H&EE 16 786 6,790
2,019 12,458
Current assets RBEE
Other assets Hu&EE 16 121 906
Inventories Ve 18 - 10,018
Financial assets at fair value BRETEAFTEINEZS
through profit or loss A& B 20 66,093 -
Trade and other receivables i Ui BR Rk % L Ath i U 3R 19 141,542 313,937
Loans receivables JE U B X 21 92,413 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS 22 23,955 7,444
324,124 332,305
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables JRE 1<% B K B EL A JE < 3R 23 26,886 15,380
Borrowings EE 24 20,816 -
Tax payable JE T 718 2,798 1,622
50,500 17,002
Net current assets RBEETRE 273,624 315,303
Total assets less current HWEEBRRBAEE
liabilities 275,643 327,761
NET ASSETS EEFE 275,643 327,761
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ROIR R | R

At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+F=HA=+—H

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E-REF
et BETFT BT
Capital and reserves B R #E

Share capital AR A 25 20,146 16,787
Reserves ffE1 255,497 310,974

Equity attributable to equity RAGIRIERE ARG REZ
holders of the Company 275,643 327,761
Non-controlling interests e I 2 - -
TOTAL EQUITY ERBERE 275,643 327,761

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on RZE—tEFAAZt+—HEEEZDHE

21 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by MEBEETE YHIATEERREE
Liu Rongsheng Gan Weiming
BlRE HEHR
Chairman Director
FE BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RRARESE AR
Reserves
1
Non-
Share Share  Contrbuted ~ Exchange  Statutory  Accumulated Total controlling
cpital  premium surplus reserve reserve [osses eserves Subtotal interests Total
(Note 37(a)  (Note 37(3)
Note (i) (i) (Note i) (Note i)

kX ROEE  GARR  ERRR  iTEE 6B ek P ERRER A
(W@ (WaE370)

(In HKS'000) (WEBTTAEN) Wi fi)) i) CHaEG) (W)
At 1 Aprl 2015 RZF-1FMA-A 13254 43746 594,707 9,127 2512 (576705 467,087 480,341 (2251 478,000
Loss for the year FnhEE - - - - - (0553)  (0553)  (205532) (334)  (205,:866)

Other comprehensive income £t 2E s (H%)
(loss)

ltems that may be reclassified ~ Z#A#EFNAEZERE
subsequently to profitor foss B H

Exchange differences on GARZERES

consolidation - - - 40 - - 40 40 (51 1
Share of other comprehensive loss EiEF S AR E 2 EER

of associates - - - (293) - - (293) (293) - (293)

Total comprehensive loss for the  FR2EEELHE
year - - - (253 - (205532) (205,785 (205,785 (385 (206,170)

Transactions with equity HRESFARTZRS
holders

Contributions and distributions &k 7/F

Issue of shares upon placingin-~ A-E-RE/\EEEM%

August 2015 1kt 250) 883 13,978 - - - - 13,978 14,861 - 14,861
Issue of shares upon placingin -~ A=F-RENFEEME
September 2015 filkfp 25(i) 2,650 35,965 N N - - 35,965 38,615 - 38,615

Total transactions with equity ~ EfRERENETZRFE

holders 8 3,533 49,943 N N - - 49,943 53,476 - 53,476
Disposal of subsidiaries HERRAT 320) - - - (180) (91) - @n) @n) 2,636 2,365
At 31 March 2016 R=F-7"%=A=1+-H 16,787 487,389 594,707 8,694 2421 (782,237) 310974 327,761 - 327,761
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AARRBEEARL
Reserves
1
Non-
Share Share Contributed  Exchange  Statutory Accumulated Total controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve losses  reserves  Subtotal interests Total
(Note 37(a)  (Note 37(a)
Note (0)] (i) (Note i) (Note ii)
Rk ROEE HABR  ERGE  iRRE  ZHER agk Nt FERER ait
(Hi31e)  (HiE37(a)
(In HK$'000) (MEBTTREN) izt @) () (&G (KEG)
At 1 April 2016 KZE-"EBA-R 16,787 487,389 594,707 8,694 2421 (782,31 310,974 327,761 - 327,761
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (67199 (67,199)  (67,199) - (67199)
Other comprehensive income £ 2E i3 (H%)
(loss)
ltems that may be reclassified  RETHEHAEZ Bk
subsequently to profit or loss B H
Bxchange differences on GARZERES
consolidation - - - (5,925) - - (5,925) (5,925) - (5,925)
Total comprehensive loss for the  £/2 A ELE
year - - - (5,925) - (67,199) (73,124) (73,124) - (73,124)
Transactions with equity HRERFAETZRS
holders
Contributions and distributions 12 & 7
Issue of shares upon placing ~ RELEM &R 25(i) 3,359 29,19 - - - - 29,1% 32,555 - 32,555
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEAR 320) - - - (9,128) (2421) - (11,549) (11,549 - (11,549)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=A=1-H 20,146 516,585 594,707 (6,359) - (849,436) 255,497 275,643 - 275,643

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017




Note:

(ii)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

The laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") require wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the
PRC (“WFOE") to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely
general reserve, enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare
and bonus fund which are appropriated from the net profit as
reported in the PRC statutory accounts.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, which are WFOE, are
required to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit to
the general reserve until the reserve has reached 50% of its
registered capital. The general reserve can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The enterprise expansion fund can
only be used to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC.
Appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of directors of
the subsidiaries in the PRC.

The subsidiaries in the PRC incurred after-tax losses and
therefore no transfer to the statutory reserve was made for the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

ff et -

()

(ii)

R RREEERRE I EEIT R
RIMELZINEZR -

REBEPEARKME ([HE])ZEZER
ER RBENEBECE (SMEBED
%) ABERBEDEERB ARTMAFIEA
ETEAERE BRE—RERGRES ©F
BREADS BIRMMANESEFEAE -

AEENTEMBARBIEBEERE
BRE BRI EBELEACERBIER
BARFRDIDIMOREREESEEH
HEETMERNS0% R 1L - B RHEE
THBARIEHE RILERERRERR
OB R AT B R B DA - T B R 4 HE B
RESTVAGIEREBitERERE
ERPIZIARA - B T RALAN ZE 2 R
ERNTENEAREIRBMNZA M
RAe(BRESRE TRMRAMESA
R EMNERARMNESESRE -

TERBARSSRRRER BEE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E-RF
HtaE BETFT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KR
Loss before taxation MR E A
From continuing operations REAFBFELEEERS (82,862) (197,018)
Gain/(loss) from discontinued KEADKRIEERWE(EE)
operations 17,129 (7,226)
Amortisation of intangible assets & & # 5 13 13
Amortisation of other assets H & EE ey 9206 1,024
Bad debts written off ZIRHMEE 46,056 984
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% = MR EITE
equipment 2,033 4,268
Impairment loss of goodwill HEREEE 6,046 -
Impairment loss of intangible assets #JZ& & 2 Fi{EE B - 14,775
Impairment loss of property, plant  #1%  BiE &R 2 BEBE
and equipment - 3,934
Interest income FEWA (2) (510)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of HEMB AR Z () EiE
subsidiaries (18,343) 3,451
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BHEMREREM
and equipment and other assets BEZEE - 1,751
Net unrealised gain on financial FRBEmEATEIE 28
asset at fair value through profit & 7 KSR HEE
or loss (7,144) -
Provision for prepayment TEfT RIB R 5,000 24,999
Write-down of inventories WoREE - 64,651
Write-off of prepayment i EShEN NP - 2,508
Share of results of associates e RN - 8,811
Changes in working capital EEESH
Inventories =g 10,018 (10,018)
Trade and other receivables JFEE L B R e L A JE LKU R 136,033 70,470
Loan receivables R E R (92,413) -
Trade and other payables P A1 BR SRR 2 LAt A5 73R 21,662 (309,747)
Exchange difference b 3 ZRR (5,744) 918
38,388 (321,962)
Cash used in operations REXKMARS
Income tax paid SATFTISH (290) -
Net cash generated from/(used) KEEREME/(R)Re
in operating activities HEE 38,098 (321,962)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—+tF —E-REF
st BETFT BT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Disposal of subsidiaries T EHEA A 132 (1,101)
Interest received BEFE 2 510
Net cash outflow from acquisition UWEEH B AR 2R &R /F5E

of subsidiaries (15,620) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE &= MR & i

plant and equipment and other BEFSHIE

assets - 4,030
Purchase of financial assets at fair B E #BIBFIEAFEYEY

value through profit or loss TEVEE (58,949) -
Purchase of intangible assets EEETEE - (3,886)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  WE&EE

equipment (397) (4,893)
Net cash outflow from investing REZHBE LR FHE

activities (74,832) (5,340)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Net proceeds from shares issued Bo M i BT R0 P 1S FR0E /58

upon new placing 25(iii) 32,555 -
Net proceeds from shares issued A-—F—R"FN\AREMmET

upon placing in August 2016 B FR 1S SR IE F 5 25(i) - 14,861
Net proceeds from shares issued AT RNFNAREmMET

upon placing in September 2016 JDFT1S RIE H58 25(ii) - 38,615
Proceeds from borrowings BEMSHIE 20,816 -
Net cash from financing METHMERES TR

activities 53,371 53,476
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HERBELZEEYWEM R

and cash equivalents D) FE 16,637 (273,826)
Cash and cash equivalents at REHINRERREEEY

beginning of reporting period 7,444 281,246
Effect on foreign exchange rate INERTE R B) 2 o2 - HEE

changes, net (126) 24
Cash and cash equivalents at HRERRRERREEEY

end of reporting period, BRITHEBRRRS

represented by bank balances

and cash 22 23,955 7,444

PEISFEEERERLAT  2016-2017F K
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (formerly known
as "Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group
Limited”) (the “Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda
on 7 June 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Bermuda Companies Act of 1981. The
Company’'s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is located at Suite 2203, 22/F,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are business of supply chain management services and
money lending business.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
company's accounting policies.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted
by the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the "Group”) is set out below.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued) 2. EBHIBHE

2.(a)The consolidated financial statements have been 2)FEVBREREEBHELE

prepared on a going concern basis, the Group
had incurred a loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$67 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have carefully
reviewed the Group’s cash position as at the end of
the reporting period and the cash flow forecast for
the next twelve months. In reviewing the Group’s
cash flows, the Directors have considered the
following factors:

o A major and controlling shareholder confirms
that fund, if required, will be made available
to the Company through shareholder’s loans
to meet the present and future cashflow
requirement from operation and settlement of
its outstanding obligations

o Continuous development and improvement of
the Group’s sales of goods and services and
future cash flows to be generated from new
revenue source and new businesses

° Continuous effort to control cost of the
Group.

The Directors believe that the Group is able to meet
its financial obligations in full as and when they
fall due and consider that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on going concern
basis is appropriate.

HERGR KEBEE-_ZT—+t
FZA=T—HIEFEZRE
FEh &5 18 4 A& 7% 67,000,000
Lo % EIBRNBENFEERTH
AR ASBRAEEFEL
BIZRENZHNERER -EHEE
REMBHREE EECHAE
BAEBNRBERAR RS K
EFRARTZEAZRERE
B - NEBEAEBZRERE
K ZEE2ERMNSEEX -

o —FZEITERIERIREER
BB B REERAARR T
REES(MEE)AEN
Higa BB M AKRES
MEFRRENEHKE
FTAIE

s AXAEEEMHERKRHZ
FEERNBERF B
WARBEHEHEEZ

HRESRE

s BREZNERANEEZK
Z

EFMHEASEA BN RN
Az B EE  XRRIREE
REERRERGEMBERRIRB

s

HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)
2(b) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
adopted the following revised and amended
standards of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its
operations and have an impact on the consolidated

financial statements:

HKAS 1 (amendment)

HKAS 16 (amendment)
and HKAS 38
(amendment)

HKAS 27 (amendment)

HKFRS 10 (amendment),
HKFRS 12
(amendment)
and HKAS 28
(amendment)

HKFRS 11 (amendment)

Annual Improvements
Project

Disclosure initiative

Clarification of
acceptable methods
of depreciation and
amortisation

Equity method in separate
financial statements

Investment entities:
applying the
consolidation exception

Accounting for
acquisitions of interests
in joint operations

Annual improvements
2012-2014 cycle

The adoption of such revised and amended
standards did not have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ _—F—+F=A=1+—HIFFE

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued) 2.

2(c) Standards and amendments to published
standards that are not effective during the
year and have not been early adopted by the
Group

BHIRHE)

2(c) RAFEEARERBELREE R
REERMERRHC EM
R 2 1ER]

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of

BEAMGREAEMA Bt
Eﬂi’“‘\EﬁEﬁﬁ%zﬂ &1 R

amendments and new standards which are not yet REZE-_ZT—tF=A=+—H

effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and ﬁﬁf;mﬁiixﬂ INARERARTEA

which have not been adopted in these financial sl

statements.

HKAS 7 (amendments)  Disclosure Initiative’ Ehe:EL WERESR

EVEACES!S)

HKAS 12 (amendments) Recognition of Deferred EEeER piASIREEE
Tax Assets for F125: (& RIEERIEE
Unrealised Losses' 22) E'

HKFRS 2 (amendments) Classification and EBTEHRE URHhEBEM Y
measurement of AR 255 YRS ER
share-based payment (&30 i 22
transaction?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? EBVHERE SRIA?

AERIZE 5%

HKFRS 10 (amendment) Sale or contribution FEBIMGHRE Txéﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁ
and HKAS 28 of assets between AEBIZE 1097 NARHAEEDR
(amendment) an investor and its (&%) & Az EE

associate or joint FEeTE HEHIE AL
venture? BI55 2855
(1&82)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts FBMGHRE HEFAELZI
with customer? B ZE 1558 2
HKFRS 16 Leases? EEVBRE A3
AERIZE 1657
Note:

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

i

R-T—tF—-A—RAzzig

January 2017 e 48 B0 47 5 HARE) A 3k

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R-_E—NE—A—RB 2%
January 2018 e 48 B0 47 5 HA A A 3k

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 R-_EE—NE—A—B 2%
January 2019 e 48 B0 47 5 HA A A 3k

4 To be determined by the IASB
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Z BEE

PEISFEEERERLAT  2016-2017FHK

91



92

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

2(c) Standards and amendments to published

standards that are not effective during the
year and have not been early adopted by the
Group (continued)

The Groups are in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the above developments are
relevant to the Groups’ financial statements but the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Groups' results of operations and
financial position. Further details are discussed
below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS
39 - Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, calculation of impairment
of financial assets and hedge accounting. On
the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS
39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification of financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing
revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

2(c) Standards and amendments to published
standards that are not effective during the
year and have not been early adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 no longer distinguished between finance
leases and operating leases. Subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a
similar way to current finance lease accounting.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impact of the amendments of the GEM Listing
Rules

The Group has adopted the amendments to the GEM
Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to the
financial reporting requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) in the year ended 2016.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 March each year. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Limited
(FIFEEZHEEERAA, “Shenzhen Yuheng”),
the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into
a series of contractual arrangement (“Contractual
Arrangements”) with Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery
Company Limited (RIITHE T ERERBR A, “Jin Yu
Tang”), wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Maoji which enable
Shenzhen Yuheng to:

—  exercise effective financial and operational control
over Jin Yu Tang;

—  exercise equity shareholders’ voting rights of Jin Yu
Tang;

- receive substantially all of the economic interest and
returns generated by Jin Yu Tang in consideration
for the business support and technical services
provided by Shenzhen Yuheng, at Shenzhen
Yuheng's discretion;

—  obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase
the entire equity interest in Jin Yu Tang from Mr.
Hong Maoji; and

—  obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Jin
Yu Tang from Mr. Hong Maoji as collateral security
to guarantee performance of all of the obligations
of Mr. Hong Maoji and Jin Yu Tang under the
Contractual Arrangements.

Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations, foreign
investors are restricted from conducting far ocean fishery
services or holding equity interest in an entity conducting
such services in China. As a result of the Contractual
Arrangements, the Group has rights to variable returns
from its involvement with Jin Yu Tang, has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over Jin Yu
Tang, and is considered to have control over Jin Yu Tang.
Consequently, Jin Yu Tang is considered to be a subsidiary
of the Group and the financial statements of Jin Yu
Tang are included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

However, there are uncertainties regarding the
interpretation and application of existing and future
PRC laws and regulations which could affect the
Company’s ability to exercise control over Jin Yu Tang,
its right to receive substantially all of the economic
interest generated by Jin Yu Tang, and its ability to
consolidate the financial results of Jin Yu Tang into the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The Company
believes that, based on the legal opinion obtained
from the Company’s PRC legal counsel, the Contractual
Arrangements are legally binding and enforceable and do
not violate current PRC laws and regulations.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized
gains arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Accounting policies of subsidiaries would be
changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but no control or joint control of those
policies.

The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment or a portion thereof is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses
when the Group’s share of losses of the investee equals
or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the
investee, which includes any long term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is measured at the excess of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the
acquired subsidiary. Goodwill arising on an acquisition
of an associate is measured as the excess of the cost of
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired
associate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised as a
separate asset. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in interests in associates. Goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, which is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment test
and determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units. An impairment loss on
goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary over the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree,
if any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. In respect of an
associate, any excess of the Group’s share of its net fair
value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment is recognised immediately as income.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when
the operation is abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Trademarks with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, are capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources to complete the development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Other development expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss as an expense as incurred. When the asset is
available for use, the capitalised development costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year
in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives from the
date on which they are available for use and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and
depreciated separately. The principal annual rates used
are as follows:

over the remaining
lease terms

20% to 33%
20% to 33%
20% to 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures
Computer and office equipment
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as fair value
through profit or loss, and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables” and “cash
and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and the transaction costs are expensed in the
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss is subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried
at amortised cost is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flow discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. Such impairment
loss is reversed in subsequent periods through profit or
loss when an increase in the asset's recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank deposits
with original maturity with three months, cash at banks,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably
and on the following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risk and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to customers and the
title is passed.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Income in respect of lightning electromagnetic pulse
protection business, energy management business and
supply chain management business is recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss except
for those arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are
also recognised directly in equity.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition
of a foreign operation which are to be treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation, are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate.

e All resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

o On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017

TESTHBERE)

HNESIRE (AE)
DREEBMBRINEZRER ([HNEZE
B2 ARBMEER ZEERMT
AIIGIRIA T T RBE B2 HRER

s REUBHIMNBRENZEER
BERGER) RUEINE XS
mELZBERHEEMBRER
EE 2 AP EFRE B (AR EZ SN
BEBzEERAE) HIEE®
R W HERRE -

. BREMERZAREZ S
THEREE -

s MBEAZERERANEME
[E N

s RUEBIIEHBHEREKE
R—IHBINER 2 2 B0 - 3
BRRERBBINEBHHIB L
AENEIHE AP RKRER
EREZ e 3 A= R YNCIE ]
BZHE IFRKRELHBEE
INETE 2 E RRIBATENZ
HE)R - ARRIEE ARG
BREBRERRAZHBERL
ERENNBRERSE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the first in,
first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, other assets and
investment in associates may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates
cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss immediately.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is

recognised as an income in profit or loss immediately.

For investments in associates recognised using the equity
method, the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment as a whole
with its carrying amount. The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates

uses to determine the recoverable amount.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting

policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which

the associated services are rendered by employees.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme for the staff in Hong Kong are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior the contributions
are vested fully in those employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the PRC,
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes for the Group’s PRC staff are made to the
relevant government authorities in the PRC, which are
calculated on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in the
PRC. These contributions are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group's employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost
of such transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a reserve within equity. The
fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton
model, taking into account the terms and conditions of
the transactions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the years in which the vesting conditions are to be
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment to
the reserve within equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled transactions (continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, an additional expense is recognised for any
increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the
modification, as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled before the
vesting date, it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described above.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of investment in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial
position which is eliminated on consolidation.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial
recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(ii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

Ownership of motor vehicles

Certain motor vehicles of the Group are registered
in the name of independent third parties, which
hold the motor vehicles on behalf of the Group
under trust arrangement. In the opinion of the
directors, the trust arrangement is sufficient to
create valid trusts under the law of Hong Kong
that the Group is the beneficial owner of the motor
vehicles. Therefore, the Group has accounted
for these motor vehicles as property, plant and
equipment of the Group.

Key sources of estimate uncertainty
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation
by management of the collectability of the trade
and other receivables, and loan receivables. A
considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including assessing the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of
these customers were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance will be required. At the end
of the reporting period, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables, and loan receivables
after provision for impairment amounted to
HK$233,955,000 (2016: HK$313,937,000).

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investments
in associates have suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHHE#E

(continued)

(b) Key sources of estimate uncertainty

(b) fEFTABEMZEERR(E)

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are impaired where an indication of impairment
exists. This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, which is equal to the higher of
net selling price or the value in use. Estimating the
value in use requires the management to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Any impairment will be charged to profit or loss.

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories, as stated in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, at the end of each reporting
period, and makes allowance for inventories that
are identified as obsolete, slow-moving or no longer
recoverable. The Group carries out the inventory
review on a product-by-product basis and makes
allowances by reference to the latest market prices
and current market conditions.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 4.

The Group manages its businesses by individual
companies, which are organised by a mixture of both
business lines and geographical locations. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s chief operating decision makers,
who are the directors of the Company, for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following reporting segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reporting segments:

—  Supply chain management segment which provides
services involving the planning and implementation
of an integrated solution for the effective flow of
business, logistic, information and funds;

- Money lending segment which provides money
lending services.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's chief operating decision makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reporting segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all allocated assets with
the exception of interest in associates and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
and other payables attributable to the sales/service
activities of the individual segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation of assets attributable to those
segments. However, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

Information regarding the Group’s reporting
segments as provided to the Group’s chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 is set
out below.
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Continuing operations

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 4. HHFERE
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DEPEE - BERERGE(E
(continued)

FFERE R
Continuing operations

BEEERR

Supply chain management services

business Money lending business Consolidated
HEEERRRER HEEE Ba
2017 2016 2017 2016 217 2016
HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
ZE-tE 2Bk IE-tf EE 5tk Ei
BEFR FHTT E¥R bl v BT bl o
Segment revenue ABE
Sale of goods to external customers HINIEPHESR 113,482 1,662,799 - - 13,482 1,662,799
Senvice fees from external customers RSEPUBREER - 130 8,185 - 8,185 130
113,482 1,662,929 8,185 - 121,667 1,662,929
Segment results ABER (54,984) (160,204) 6,463 - (48521) (160,204)
(Gain on disposal of subsiciaries HERBRA NE 799 -
Unallocated income APTUA 118 499
Unallocated expenses FARAY (42.283) (28502)
Share of results of associates EfBERaLE - (8811)
Loss hefore taxation RENEE (82,862) (197,018)
Income tax expenses FERY (1,466) (1622)
Loss for the year from continuing operations  FEZEEXREREE (84,328) (198,640)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Seqment assets ABEE 134,144 321,06 92,413 - 226,557 321,206
Assets relating to discontinued operations HRREREBEE - 5,569
Unallocated assets, including interests in associates  AAEAE  BERBLAT2ES 99,586 17,988
Consolidated total assets GREELS 326,143 344,763
Seqment liablities PHEE 18,054 3,708 588 - 18,642 3,708
Liabiltes relating to discontinued operations SRR HERER AR - 8,101
Unallocated liabltes FAkERE 31,858 5193
Consolidated total liabltes FREREE 50,500 17,002
Other segment information AfpAPER
Amortisation of intangble assets EVEERH 13 - - - 13 13
Amortisation of other assets AfpEEEy - - - - - 1,04
Bad debts writien off SR 46,056 984 - - 46,056 984
Depreciation i 8 69 - - 8 4268
Impairment loss of goodwil A 5,546 - 500 - 6,046 -
Impairment loss of intangible assets EVEEHBER - 14775 - - - 14775
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 1% - BE R E 7 HERE - 3,934 - - - 3,934
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y%  BREZENRENEE 2 ER
and other assets - - - - - 1,751
Provision for prepayment BRiEEE - 24,999 - - - 24,999
Wiite down of inventories HiRe - 64,651 - - - 64,651
Write off of prepayment fiERAE - 2,508 - - - 2,508
Additions to non-current assets REFIHAE - 8016 - - - 8,779
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4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group's operations are primarily derived from
external customers located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The following table provides an analysis of
the Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical market and information about the
non-current assets by locations of assets:

4, DEER(E

(b)

Revenue from external

ih & &
AEEEKRETERBMUREER
FERINBES - TRETIEH
EMHBESAEERAINBES
MRS DA RIREEMN B IR
HEFERBEENER

Carrying amounts of non-

customers current assets

REHHBEFE MG FREBEENIRMEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tHF —E—RF —E—tfF ZE—RF
BT T BT BT T BT T
Hong Kong &5 8,185 298,945 1,341 11,788
PRC =8 113,482 1,363,984 287 670
Others Hip - - 391 -
121,667 1,662,929 2,019 12,458

(c) Information about major customers () EEEFEFZER

For the year ended 31 March 2017, three customers
(2016: three customers) that individually accounted
for over 10% of total revenue for continuing
operations of the Group are set out below:

Supply chain management
services business

HE-_ZT—+H&=A=+—HIt
FE AZRZEP(ZZ—R&F:
ZEZRE)EAAEAEERFEL
BEEBEINZEERIBE1I0% L
R

Consolidated

HEEEIERIEER wEe
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tHF ZE—RF —E—+tF —TE-RF
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Customer A ZEA 39,446 - 39,446 -
Customer B ZFB 36,303 - 36,303 -
Customer C ZHEC 28,343 - 28,343 -
Customer D =ZED - 401,740 - 401,740
Customer E ZFE - 214,768 - 214,768
Customer F =2FEF - 214,284 - 214,284
104,092 830,792 104,092 830,792
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REVENUE i
An analysis of the Group’s revenue during the year from REBRRFENFBELEEBF WS
continuing operations is as follows: ZONWT
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —TREF
BT T BETT
Continuing operations FEICE TS
Sale of goods from: KELATHEEZEmMEE :
Supply chain management services it jiE §# & 1% IR 75 5 75
business 113,482 1,662,799
Service fees from: REATREZREER :
Interest income from loan JEUE F A B U
receivables 8,185 -
Supply chain management services it jiE §# & 1% IR 75 5 75
business - 130
Revenue Wz 121,667 1,662,929
Interest income from continuing BB EEBR B WA
operation 2 510
Other revenue Hity 2 510
Total revenue &gt -C] 121,669 1,663,439
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6.

Loss before taxation from both continuing and
discontinued operations is stated after charging

BRBLRI B IR

FELERBRERIEEBRBAE
B0k (R A) RO SRR H

(crediting):
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—+F —E—RF
BT T BT T
Employee benefit expenses EEEANHX(EEESHL)
(including directors’
remuneration)
Salaries, allowances and benefits 4 «EEE R BEYFIZE
in kind 10,327 15,890
Contribution to defined R EHKETE 2R
contribution schemes 341 686
10,668 16,576
Other items Hfb1EH
Amortisation (included in BT AITHAX):
administrative expenses):
- Intangible assets —ELEE 13 13
— Other assets —Hi&E 906 1,024
Auditor’s remuneration B EH N & 571 900
Bad debts written off 22 R 8 46,056 984
Cost of services rendered (including RHAREK A (B 5 A iR & 275
relevant employee benefit S RITE)
expenses and depreciation) 2 1,838
Cost of goods sold BEEEmMEA 112,758 1,653,639
Depreciation of property, plant and % - = LR EITE
equipment 2,033 4,268
Exchange (gain) loss, net b 5 (e ) B 18558 (709) (1,634)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ K (779) -
Impairment loss (included in other SHEEE(GFA LML LR ):
operating expenses):
— Goodwill —HE 6,046 -
— Intangible assets —EEE - 14,775
— Property, plant and equipment — % BE MR E - 3,934
Loss on disposal financial assets at H&#EBEEIEATEYIRZ 6
fair value through profit or loss BEEE 1,293 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HE¥ZE WE MEEANEMEE
and equipment and other assets ZBE - 1,751
Operating lease payments for MEZEEHENR
premises 4,420 9,840
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIEEBFEREF,(EE)
discontinued operations 17,129 (7,226)
Provision for deposit paid EfiReBE 5,000 -
Provision for prepayment AN FIRRE - 24,999
Sponsorship fee on naming right  —% BB LENEDE
over a football team - 23,055
Write-down of inventories WoREE - 64,651
Write-off of prepayment W E TR A - 2,508
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and
receivable by the Company’s directors are as follows:

7. EEMe
AKRAREFE W EWEN € 4258
T
2017
ZE-tE

Salaries, Contribution

allowances  to defined

Directors’ Discretionary and benefits contribution
fees honus in kind scheme Total
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000

FeoBM  ARMR

R il
ESHe  BERL  EMAE 5 Ch
B¥Tr  EMTn  BETn ERfn BEFx

Executive directors

Liu Rongsheng (executive Director, chairman and
Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as executive
Director and Chairman on 7 September 2016
and appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
16 May 2017)

Lord Cao Yunde (Co-Chairman) (appointed on
20 February 2017)

Gan Weiming (appointed on 14 September 2016)

Fan Guocheng (appointed on 16 May 2017)
Chen Liang (appointed on 20 February 2017)

Wu Zhinan (resigned on 14 September 2016)

Chu Ping Hang (appointed on 7 September 2016
and resigned on 16 May 2017)

Huang Johnny (resigned on 4 May 2016)

Huang He (resigned on 20 February 2017)

Chen Jiang (resigned on 2 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Pang Pui Hung, Paton (appointed on 16 May 2017)

Li Mei
Li Yuen Fong, Michelle(@ppointed on
14 September 2016)
Liu Weiliang (resigned on 14 September 2016)
Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017)

#i7Ez

YRE@MTES TERERIARIR
"S- ENALBREZANNES
FIRRCE-ERATARERAA
BRHTE)

EEEBE(BEIE) (N -5 -+F-F

—+BEEf)
ERAR-E-AENAATIA

EZ(D)
EERR_E-TERR AR

EZ(D)
BRM-Z-t5-A-1H

EZT)
REF(N-F-"ENATRAED)
RRER-Z-NENFLBERARR

“E-LERATRBEL)
EXE(R-E-AERANARE)
ER(N-T-tE-R-THREM)
BRI -Z— A E+-5-RRM)

BUFuTES

gk -F-LERATHA
BZif)

i
FRA(R-E-R"EAATEA
BZif)
ARR(R-Z-RENATHARLE)
BRXER-Z—LERATRAR)

544 - - 11 555
106 - - - 106
276 - - - 276
106 - - - 106
137 - - - 137
I - - 11 15
113 - - - 113
857 - 07 14 968
3% - - - 3%
2916 - 07 % 3009
120 - - - 120
8 - - - )
68 - - - 68
150 - - - 150
0 - - - 10
333 - 07 % 3469
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

7. EEMeHE)

2016
It S
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances o defined
Directors'  Discretionary ~ and henefits  contribution
fees bonus in kind scheme Total
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
£0-2%  REfR
Rk itElz
Ezhe  WERL  EDiE 3 Eh
B¥FT  BETT EEFT BT R
Executive directors UnEs
Chen Jiang (appointed on 7 August 2015) RIM=Z-1E/\AtAEZA) 325 - - - 325
Chen Nan (re-designated to non-executive diector -~ ISR -Z-REAATABREAEN
on 19 June 2015 and resigned on 7 August 2015)  EERA-E-RENALEEA) 210 - 41 9 260
Gong Dongsheng (resigned on 19 June 2015) ERE(NE-RESATHAED) 259 - 113 12 384
Huang He (appointed on 7 August 2015) ER(N-F-1E/\AtAEZRE) 624 - 36 - 660
Huang Johnny (appointed on 7 August 2015and ~ EXB(R-E-RENALBERARNZ
resigned on 4 May 2016) - FRARAEA) 781 - - - 781
Li Zhike (resigned on 7 August 2015) BEN(R -1 \ALREM) 189 - 126 12 307
Wu Zhinan REF 300 - 256 - 556
Yu Weiye (appointed on 19 June 2015 and resigned  $E£(R-E-R&E/ A A REEARA
on 7 July 2015) “E-RFLALAED) 60 - - - 80
Zhang Xiaozheng (appointed on 17 June 2015and ~ F/ME(R-F-REABTHEEEARR
resigned on 28 July 2015) “E-RFLAZTNREA) 1) - - - Iy
2,790 - 572 33 3,395
Non-executive directors FuES
Chen Nan (re-designated from executive director on Bf§(R=E-REATARERTESS
19 June 2015 and resigned on 7 August 2015)  ERA-Z-REFNALHHT) 125 - 153 5 283
Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 17 June 2015 and  #EIE (R =E—REAF+HREZIRR
resigned on 28 July 2015) “E-RELB-TN\RE) Iy - - - 4
167 - 153 5 325
Independent non-executive directors BUFHAES
Chui Man Lung Everett (appointed on 20 May 2015) %X E(R-E-hFRA-THEZT) 130 - - - 130
Huang Yunlong (resigned on 17 June 2015) EER(N-E-RE/ATLAE) 31 - - - 31
Li Mei (appointed on 7 August 2015) FE(R-3-1E/\AtAEZA) 78 - - - 78
Liu Weiliang YR 150 - - - 150
Lung Chee Ming George (appointed on 17 June  EFR(R-B-R&E/ AT+ REEARA
2015 and resigned on 28 July 2015) “E-RELAZTNBED) 2 - - - N
Ma Yiu Ho, Peter (resigned on 20 May 2015) EEZ(NZ-1ERA-THEM) 2 - - - WAl
431 - - - 431
3,388 - 725 38 4151
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tF=A=1—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7. E%@H%(ﬁ
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REZE-_ZT—tFR-ZF—-RF=H
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended =+—H JtEEJ_; %%%Tﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ(
31 March 2017 and 2016. In addition, no emoluments EXRAEREEMMNES 2T H- 1t
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an G REBBEREZ_ZE—LtFK
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as a —E-REZA=ZT—HIEFERT
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 MEESZNERE  ERZEIMNA
March 2017 and 2016. REE S H AR B o) 22 E
HAEREBERAE -
There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in RKANBIREBEZ2_E—+F K=
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered F=A=1+—8H JJ:iFW]I??éJijZ
into or subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2017 FENEEASBZAZER EER
and 2016. HEMIRF -
The directors are of the opinion that no transactions, EERAAE RNAFERNIEE_-_Z
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation —tFERZFE-R"F=A=+—81
to the Company’s business to which the Company was FENTAER BEFERDME
a party and in which a director of the Company or a B—HEBEBARREBZERR S
connected entity of a director had a material interest, ?TﬂF& HWEARNRIEENES 2 H
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the EERENETRHBEESEEZERKR
year or at any time during the years ended 31 March FEES o
2017 and 2016.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 8. HEUBEH AL
The five highest paid individuals during the year included FRNAUZRETFTATBERLU(ZZE
two directors (2016: two), details of whose remuneration —NF ) ES He 5 e
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial PR EXERE IS ImEMIsE7 c Heh=
statements above. Details of the remuneration of the M(ZF—ANF: =f7)IEENE&H
remaining three (2016: three) highest paid individuals, S AT EfesEEHRY T
who are not directors, are as follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000
—ZE—tF —E-RF
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 2B R EWHIZR 1,980 2,094
Contribution to defined contribution FE MG E 2 K
schemes 54 37
2,034 2,131
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 8. HfNESHAL(E)
(continued)
The three (2016: three) highest paid individuals'’ “M(ZE—NF =y )&eHAL
remuneration falls within the following band: REBN AT EE :

Number of employees

EE#E
2017 2016
—E—tE ZT—RF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T 4%1,000,0007T 3 3
No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of REBEE_ZE—1THFR_FE—XRF=H
the three (2016: three) highest paid individuals as an —t+—HILFE AXEEWERTHE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a =M(ZEFE—NF =) &xeH AL
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 AT EE B (EESEIINANER
March 2017 and 2016. SR EMARNEERF R R HEA
BEEAEE -
There was no arrangement under which any of the three REE-_ZT—+FN_F—RF=H
(2016: three) highest paid individuals waived or agreed =t—BIFE =f(=ZZF—NF:
to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31 March U )BESEHATEEII S RESRE
2017 and 2016. BEHMEEAME 2 28
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FIEHAX
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of HE-_Z—tF=-A=+—HILF
16.5% on the Group’s estimated assessable profits arising B -BEEMNEBHEEAEENERS
from Hong Kong during the year ended 31 March 2017 E AT FE R RE T LA16.5% 2 B &
(2016: 16.5%). B (ZZ—7"%F : 16.5%)°
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e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 9.

The provision for the PRC enterprise income tax is based
on the statutory tax rate of 25% on the estimated
taxable profits determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: 25%).

R8s (&)
HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=+—RHLFE
PR ERRBRERESREMEENFT
BIFTSHAAR IR At ERB A EE
REEMER25%TE(ZT—"F:
25%)°

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF :E—ﬁﬁ
Continuing operations FESEER
Current tax LR TR
Hong Kong Profits Tax, current year KEEEENNER 1,167 1,622
PRC enterprise income tax, current year REFHBRPEMER 299 -
Discontinued operations BARIEER - -
Total income tax expenses from continuing HER AL EHKAER ZH
and discontinued operations k] 1,466 1,622

Tax expense for the year is reconciled to loss

REFEHIAM X BEIFAEERT

before taxation from continuing operations R B E B R
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—tF “E-RF
BET T BETFT
Loss before taxation from continuing operations $3E 4L & 27 7 BRI E 2 (82,862) (197,018)
Notional tax calculated on loss before taxation, & A1EEAEBEIZRERR
calculated at the rates applicable to profits in % HI 2 Bi =& & 2 L& FHIE
countries concerned (14,359) (41,455)
Share of results of associates i NETE - 1,454
Non-deductible expenses AAHRERIE X 11,601 15,881
Non-taxable revenue FERER T 21 (5,973) )
Unrecognised tax losses AR 2 BB B 10,237 9,499
Unrecognised temporary differences AR EREERE - 16,245
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 1 FA %t il i) & i 52 2 Tt T 5 18 - -
Tax concessions MEER (40) -
Income tax charges TR 1,466 1,622

FESFREZERAERAT 2016-2017F 3R
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(a) Disposal of Media Magic Technology Limited

(“Media Magic”)

On 27 September 2016, Upper Power Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into and completed a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party pursuant to
which Upper Power Limited sold the entire equity
interest of Media Magic Technology Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as “Media Magic”),
which is engaged in the energy management
business, at a consideration of HK$100,000 (the
“Disposal”). Upon completion of the Disposal, the
Group no longer has any equity interest in Media
Magic.

Management considers that following the Disposal,
the Group’s control over Media Magic had been
discontinued and thereby constituted discontinued
operations. Accordingly, certain comparative figures
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income have been re-presented to separately
reflect the results of the continuing operations
and discontinued operations. The results of the
discontinued operations for the year ended 31
March 2017 and 2016 have been analysed as
follows:
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e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

10. BRIEEFRK

(a)

i &Media Magic Technology
Limited ([ Media Magic)
RZE—ARFNLAZ LB AR
A 2 & W B 2 FUpper Power
Limited ST 5 =7 5T~ R ek E
F'pa% » #E 1 Upper Power Limited
EMedia Magic Technology Limited
& E W B 2 5 % BMedia
Magic|* EEWEERERFES) 2
2 EpAXHE - (B A %100,0007T
([BEHE]) HESFETKE &
£ BT H ¥ Media Magicl A 1 1{d]
s o

ERERANEEEIHE K&
B % Media MagicZ ¥ I B 4L £%
I EmMBKERIEER-
b frAEARERZE TR
HTFEBTEINARMEFELS
EBREORIEEB 2 EE-BE
ZE—tFRZFT-RFE=A
=t RIFEERIEERCE
BT
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 10. R IEEK (&)

(a) Disposal of Media Magic Technology Limited (a) HEMedia Magic Technology
(“Media Magic”) (continued) Limited([ Media Magic|)(%&)
(i)  Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued (i) Media MagicE it 2 2 #4

operations contributed by Media Magic IE¥EBRFRGR(EE)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E-RF
BEFTT BT
Revenue Wiz - 2,082
Cost of services rendered and RERBZHARLEEN 2
cost of goods sold B () (1,513)
\ @) 569
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEHA - (24)
Administrative expenses TR (433) (3,607)
Loss before taxation BRE AR (435) (3,062)
Income tax expenses FiEHRX _ _
Loss after taxation BEER (435) (3,062)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB LR M 17,564 -
Income tax related to gain on disposal of ~ BEHENBR A NENFTEHR
subsidiaries - -

Net profit/(loss) attributable to discontinued 248 |- £ 5 2 % F,/(E18)

operations R 17,129 (3,062)
(ii) Net cash inflows (outflows) attributable (i) Media MagicEfEtZE
to discontinued operations contributed RIL¥EBREZHAZHEA
by Media Magic (M) FeE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—tE :ﬁfﬁi
BEFT EEFT
Net cash flows Reng¥d
Operating activities LeEE (672) 263
Investing activities REEE - -
Total net cash (outflows) inflows Be(RE)RAFBRAE (672) 263
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - =

—tF=A=+—HIFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
(b) Disposal of Boomtech Limited (“Boomtech”)

On 27 July 2015, Power Chance Holdings Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into and completed a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which Power Chance Holdings
Limited sold the entire equity interest and assigned
the outstanding shareholders’ loan of Boomtech
at a consideration of HK$400,000 (the “Boomtech
Disposal”). Upon completion of the Boomtech
Disposal, the Group no longer has any equity
interest in Boomtech. As all the relevant percentage
ratio (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in respect
of the Boomtech Disposal fall below 5%, such
disposal does not constitute a notifiable transaction
of the Company and hence is not subject to any
disclosure requirements under chapter 19 and 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Boomtech and its subsidiaries (together as the
“Boomtech Group”) are engaged in the provision
of integrated solutions for lightning electromagnetic
pulse protection and its related engineering design,
construction and technical services.

Management considers that following the
Boomtech Disposal, the Group’'s control over
Boomtech had been discontinued and thereby
constituted discontinued operations. Accordingly,
certain comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income have been re-
presented to reflect the results of the continuing
operations and discontinued operations. The
results and cash flows of Boomtech for the period
from 1 April 2015 to 27 July 2015 included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:
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10. R LXK (&)

(b)

i EBoomtech Limited
(TBoomtech )
RZZE—RAFEAZ++tH K
N A 2 E KB A 5Power
Chance Holdings Limited E2% 5/
FE=FFUNTEREEHE B
ltPower Chance Holdings
Limited} #Boomtechz &
RERREERRER ﬁfﬁ
BB %400,0007T ([ Boomtech
& £ 18 |)° Boomtechth & £ 18
AR SN T~ 8B R
Boomtech# B (LAl J& #E - AR
Boomtechth EEEHBEB 2 TA
HEABE L E(EXRBIERE
MRAIHENRS% - BRIFEEIZER
LR BIE19R20E R EIW
THEXRRRZBTAMHR SR
F it BE BT ERIFER T -

Boomtech & H [ B A 7] (418 &
[BoomtechfEE )t FiRHELE
ERTAREIREE L 58 =)L)
THARa&ET - R MM AR S 2 47
BRRRFER

B ER A BEBoomtechit) &
FIE & - AN & B ¥Boomtech.z
THIRED R IERE BB R L
%ﬁ”‘ it & 2ElERA

BT HEREEEAE AR F
BEREEBRERIEEBR ZE
B EHE_ZFE—A~F=ZA
—+—BIEFEZE i\ﬁqﬂzm
% 1 5+ A ZBoomtech®® —
—HFNMA—HEzE-_Z— ﬂi’t
A-+tBHRAZEERBEER
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

(continued)

(ii)

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 10. & LEKE)
(b) Disposal of Boomtech Limited (“Boomtech”) (b) HEBoomtech Limited
(TBoomtech ])(#&)
(i) Loss for the year from discontinued (i) BoomtechE gtz B #1E
operations contributed by Boomtech EBZFEREE
2016
HK$°000
ZE—RF
BT T
Revenue Uz \ 760
Cost of services rendered R 2 KA (326)
434
Other revenue HAih gz -
Other income HE A -
Selling and distribution costs $HE & SHECAR (89)
Administrative expenses TR (1,058)
Loss before taxation B Al BT 18 (713)
Income tax expenses FTiSHA -
Loss after taxation Friii% &R (713)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR EE (3,451)
Net loss attributable to discontinued ERIEEBRLE BB
operations (4,164)
Net cash inflows attributable to (i) BoomtechEH it = B4 1E
discontinued operations contributed by EREL 2RSS TAFEE
Boomtech
2016
HK$'000
—E—RF
BT T
Net cash flows REREFHE
Operating activities REEE 978
Investing activities KEEE -
Total net cash inflows WMERMNFEEE 978

PEISFEEERERLAT  2016-2017FHK
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the Year (2016: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
for continuing and discontinued operations and the
weighted average number of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue during the year as follows:

11.

12.

RE
ARAREETERZRNEAFERE
(ZZT—RF  #)o

BREE
SREARIBIRE R G EEY:
BRELIEER 2 AR ARERA A
REfl SR A R EF AR R R E BT E B
AR M P AR BT E T

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF —E—RF
BT T BT T
Loss attributable to equity holders of REFELEERNERIE
the Company from continuing and RN BIIRER B AE
discontinued operations hBE (67,199) (205,532)
Loss attributable to equity holders of the K B iFEKL L ¥ 2 AR AT
Company from continuing operations [t A A FEGEE (84,328) (198,640)
Number of shares
BRAEE
2017 2016
—E—+F R
Weighted average number of ordinary FAD BT ERRAINETF
shares in issue during the year H I 1,868,312,938 1,514,686,669

For discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued
operations is HK$0.92 cents per share (2016: loss of
HK$0.46 per share), based on the profit for the year
from the discontinued operations of approximately
HK$17,129,000 (2016: loss of HK$6,841,000) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share.

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share for continuing
and discontinued operations is the same as basic loss per
share.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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tF=A=1—HILFE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % -BMERRE

?

Furniture ~ Computer
Leasehold and  and office Motor
improvements  fixtures equipment  vehicles Total
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
BEN BER
£ GARKE BOZRE HE it
B¥Tn  EMTn  BETn ERfn BEFx
Cost ﬁﬂi
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 “E-1E=R=1-Ak
E/\\ S-R%MA-H 802 433 21,899 15,691 38,825
Additions NE - - 4130 763 4,893
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAA - (39) (95) (227) (361)
Disposals e - - - (8.402) (8.402)
Bichange realignment ERAE 10 6 274 3 293
At 31 March 2016 and 1 Apri 2016 RZE-REZR=+-RR
RZZ-7ENA-H 812 400 26,208 1,828 35,248
Additions hE - - - 397 397
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAA (812) (400)  (25,794) (6,348)  (33,354)
Disposals e - - - - -
Bichange realignment ERAE - - (42) - (42)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tE=B=1-H - - n 1,871 2,249
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ RiHTEREE
At 31 March 2015 and 1 Apri 2015 RZE-REZR=-8R
R_E-15WA-A 18 291 21,679 2606 25078
Depreciation e 162 59 84 3,963 4268
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR - (33) (79) (85) (197)
Disposals e - - - (3,676) (3,676)
Impairment HE - - 3,934 - 3,934
Exchange realignment [ERER 6 3 m 1 L)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 Apri 2016 RZE-7"EZR=+-AR
RZE-7ENA-H 650 320 25,890 2,829 29,689
Depreciation nE - - 88 1,945 2,033
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBAR (650) (3200 (25792 (3843)  (30,605)
Disposals HE - - - - -
Impairment e - - - - -
Exchange realignment [E %A% - - (10) - (10)
At 31 March 2017 R-B-tEZR=1-8 - - 176 931 1,107
Net book value BEFE
At 31 March 2017 R-B-t¥=B=1-H - - 196 946 1142
At 1 April 2016 RZE-7EMA-H 162 80 318 4,999 5,559

As a result of the suspension of the development of
industry chain integration platform as stated in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of
the computer and office equipment associated with
such platform. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$3,934,000 in the profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2016. The impairment loss
has been included in the “other operating expenses” line
item in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

AR ERE M SRR W 14FT L E (=
REExE—BLTe AEEEY
ZFaBEcERERARE 2T
El&REEITIR - BER EERE
EE-RE=ZA=1+—RILEEZ
18 75 N 1 3R R (B 5 18 78 153,934,000
Lo MEBIEE AGE MK ER
NI EgERY | M5)EE -

FESFREZERAERAT 2016-2017F 3R
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - =

14.

—tF=A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
Computer
software  Trademarks Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREG BE L
BETTL BEFTL BETIL
Reconciliation of carrying amount - REEHREZE-_E-~E=A=1-H
year ended 31 March 2016 LEE
At 1 April 2015 WZZ-hEMNA—H 10,757 120 10,877
Additions NE 3,886 - 3,886
Amortisation g - (13) (13)
Impairment WA (14,775) - (14,775)
Exchange realignment & % % 132 2 134
At 31 March 2016 RZE2-RE=A=1+-H - 109 109
Reconciliation of carrying amount - FHEHREZ_E-+t£=F=1-A
year ended 31 March 2017 LEE
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"¥NA-H - 109 109
Additions upon business combination EBAHERE 6 - 6
Amortisation i (1) (12) (13)
Exchange realignment X 8% - (11) (11)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t&=F=1-H 5 86 91
At 31 March 2016 R=B-AE=R=1-H
Cost R 46,169 124 46,293
Accumnulated amortisation and impairment losses ZitEERRERR (46,169) (15) (46,184)
- 109 109
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t&=F=1-H
Cost R 6 124 130
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses ZAEERAERR (1) (39) (39)
5 86 91
Computer software *H%ﬁkﬁ:
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group entered HEE-_T—-—R"F=-A=+—8 ' »®

into a memorandum of strategic cooperation with SAP
(Beijing) Software System Company Limited for strategic
cooperation in relation to the development of the
industry chain integration platform for a term of four
years in October 2014. As a result, computer software
related to the solution management for the supply chain
business of approximately HK$3,886,000 was bought.
Since the software was not yet available for use as of 31
March 2016, no amortisation was provided for during the

year then ended.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14. BEEE (&)

Management had decided to suspend the development EEECAEREE_ZE—XRF=A
of the industry chain integration platform during the = t+—HLEFERNEGERBESEE—
year ended 31 March 2016 and assessed that the B Eel AT EEME R Tk E
recoverable amounts of the computer software would be SHEEE - AL FAEE BT
minimal. Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$14,775,000 SHIR BB E 1B A %14,775,0007T ©
was made on the computer software during the year. BEBEFAGEEZENRRAN[E
The impairment loss has been included in the "other S s A p =g =

operating expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. BBE N TR
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+5F —E—REF

BETFT BT

Share of net assets G EEFE - -
The associates are accounted for in the consolidated B NN G BHRERAERSEA
financial statements using the equity method, details of R B ERNREIRFBOT -

which at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Financial information of individually material
associates

Summarised financial information of the China Optic
Group, the material associates of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016 is set out below. No financial
information of the China Optic Group for the year ended
31 March 2017 was provided as the associate group was
disposed of in 27 September 2016.

15. & R RIRE=R(B)

BRI EABE QR z2MBER

H2016FE3A31BAEBEABE A
A]China Optic GroupZ 81 7% & £+ i
EHIN T -BImREHEERREE
HE2017F3A31B L FEZHBE
B RE B S AR EEER20169F
NAZ++tHHEE-

China Optic Group

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—+tF NG
BETF T BT T
Gross amount R
Current assets MENEE N/A 14,222
Non-current assets EmBEE N/A 1,775
Current liabilities mENaE N/A (22,727)
Non-current liabilities EmBAEE N/A (89)
Equity s N/A (6,819)
Reconciliation AR
Gross amount of equity TR BRE N/A (6,819)
Group's ownership interests REEHEEER N/A 47.67%
Carrying amount of interests w2 BREE N/A -
Revenue Wz N/A 3,233
Loss for the year FREE N/A (26,144)
Other comprehensive income (loss) Hh 2w (E5i8) N/A 227
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEERE N/A (25,917)
Dividends received from the associates BEE A RIEZ IR E N/A -
Group’s ownership interests INE B A RERERS N/A 47.67%
Group's share of results of associates REE IR E A RIRE N/A (8,811)
Group's share of other comprehensive loss N& B fE{(GEi 2 A R H 42
of associates HE8 N/A (293)
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16. OTHER ASSETS 16. Htt &=

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
—E—+F ZE—RF
BT T BT T

Net carrying amount BREFE
At beginning of the reporting period PR 5 H W] 7,696 9,700
Disposal of subsidiaries i E BT A A (5,883) -
Disposals e - (980)
Amortisation e (906) (1,024)
At end of the reporting period RI|BEHR 907 7,696
Current portion mEnEs 121 906
Non-current portion SER BN ELD 786 6,790
907 7,696

HEERKRER THER ZEND
N TIABEAVER TR -

Other assets represent payments for the right to use the
vehicle licence plates and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over a lease period of 10 years.

17. GOODWILL 17. &

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—+F —E—RF
BT T BT T

At cost less accumulated impairment ZBRAER RsHREEE

losses

At beginning of the reporting period R¥RE HA) - 5,573
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) WHEFT B A Rl (HaE31) 6,046 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - (5,573)
Impairment loss BEEE (6,046) -
At end of the reporting period REEHR - -
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs")

for impairment test as follows:

17.

[GE€D
BREBANUBNABIMEAE
BReELEE(REELSN )2
WERHDT :

2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —ERF
et BET T BT T
CGU REEEEN
Payment gateway business ST AR - 209,627
Money lending business MEZE® 500 -
Supply chain management services e S IR ARG S TS
business (i) 5,546 -
Cost 2% 6,046 209,627
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZT—tF —E-RF
BETT BT T
CGU REELEN
Payment gateway business YA ER - 209,627
Money lending business SEES 500 -
Supply chain management services ISR E IR RS %
business (i) 5,546 -
Accumulated impairment losses it REEE 6,046 209,627
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —TE-RF
BT T BETT
CGU REEEEN
Payment gateway business YT EER - -
Money lending business SEES - -
Supply chain management services e E IR ARG ST
business (i) - -

Net book value

AREFHE
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

U]

Supply chain management services business

Impairment assessment is carried out by
determining the value in use of the cash-generating
unit. The value in use is represented by the net
present value of future forecast net cash inflows
of the cash generating unit which is determined
on the basis of the discounted cashflow model.
These calculations used cash flow projections based
on a two-year financial budget approved by the
management, with growth rate of revenue of 1.5
to 5 times. Cash flows beyond a two-year period
approved by management have been extrapolated
using zero growth rates. The discount rate used
is pre-tax, which equals to the weighted average
costs of capital of 11.6%, is used to determine the
discount factor under the discount cash flow model.

As a result of a change of initial business plan of
the subsidiary, the management reassessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU of supply chain
management services business as at 31 March
2017 and was of the opinion that impairment loss
amounted HK$5,546,000 should be recognized as
the recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than its
carrying amount.

17. & (&

U]

HEEEERBEL
BEMHERBECFERRSE
HETZFERER-FHEARR
NIRRT 2 AR BT
MIREEHBETTZ ARMETRE
FRAZBEFE WS ERT
FRZBEEREMFT AL EIRE
B EZMEGBRE BEE
BERAISESE - BREIEE
Bz MERBMUIIZ B SR
2 AIUTHERHEE - RIEE
EREBRBREAUAEEHIRR
o HEA— AR AR EEE
RINAEF D E AR A11.6% ©

KB AR LR SR E
MEEEERE  BEBEMNN
TR E—tF=A=+—H#
EREEREEFNRESELE
A5 WRSHERRE
EEEM RS EORER
EE AERAREEELEE
5,546,0007T °
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

18. INVENTORIES

18.

rE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°'000
—E—tF “TRF

R T BET T

Finished goods BIAY T

For the year ended 31 March 2016, with reference
to a valuation report prepared by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, an independent valuer, the
management assessed and determined that a provision
of HK$64,651,000 against the carrying value of
inventories was required and recognised as expense in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19.

- 10,018

R2016F3A3MHIEFE  £2E%F
VHEMYAFEZRAERA A AR
ZHERE  AREEBEEEFHR
ATEARTEZ REEIREEEE
64,651,000 N ér A 2 AR R A

B W Bfe K B2 Lt P WA R
2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—E—tF  —FAF

EBETFT BT T

Trade receivables from third parties B =7 IR
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZIREE

Other receivables H bW
Prepayments TEfRT IR
Advance payment to suppliers At FE P BN RIA
Deposits o

Other receivables H bW SR

Other tax recoverable H A ar g B Hi18
Due from associates JE Bt & A RISRIE
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116,272 380,004

(i) - (79,385)
(i) 116,272 300,619
833 2,661

(iii) 9,590 -
- 2,629

8,924 223

5,923 7,520

(iv) - 285
25,270 13,318

141,542 313,937




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

()

(ii)

Aging of trade receivables

Except for 360 days being granted to certain
customers under supply chain management
business, the Group grants credit term ranging
from 30 days to 180 days to its customers upon
the delivery of products or when the services are
rendered and invoices are issued. The aging of trade
receivables (net of allowances of bad and doubtful
debts) based on invoice date is as follows:

19.

WA Bl R 2 EL At PR WK (4

()

BRTHEBEEBER  ETER
FEF360H M E N RNEE
R E Y SR IRl 25 H 3%
ERETERFI0BE180HE
EH- R ZEAH2Y 2 B
KM REREER) 2 Rk
™

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZE—RF
BT T BT
Less than 90 days 0BT 2,099 -
91 — 180 days 912180H 9,251 35,657
181 — 270 days 1812270H 76,579 261,999
271 — 365 days 27158365H 28,343 1,010
Over 1 year —F P - 1,953
116,272 300,619

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (i) REZREBE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—ZET—tF —ERF
BT T BT T
At beginning of reporting period T ¥R B9 79,385 78,405
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (79,385) -
Exchange realignment M 5, 8 B - 980
At end of reporting period RBEHRR - 79,385

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$114,173,000 (2016: HK$300,619,000), which
were past due at the end of the reporting period
but not impaired as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the directors believe
that the amounts are fully recoverable.

REEREUER RSB IERE
B4 5B #114,173,00070( =
T— N4 ¢ B%300,619,0007T)
B FEWRIE - RS Bk 2 @
BYEBE REAERERL
BEANE BEERB%ENE
Al 2 EURE -
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137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BERARR KR HMEWRK (&)
(continued)
(ii) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (i) REREBEE)
(continued)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
Trade receivables that are not impaired i {8 K9 P& Y BR 5X —E—tF ZE—RF

BETFT BETT

Current Bl A 2,099 -
Less than 90 days past due BHEIOOH AT 9,251 -
91 - 180 days past due #HEI91Z2180H 81,839 52,257
181 — 270 days past due #H11812270H 23,083 245,399
271 - 365 days past due #EA2712365H - 1,161
Over 1 year past due BHE—F A - 1,802
114,173 300,619
116,272 300,619
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired R-ZE—++F=A=+—HF®
as at 31 March 2017 relate to debtors for whom HE -+, R BB B e U 2k T BN fE 4
there was no history of default. RN REHENEFBR -
(iii) Advance payment to suppliers (iii) B{EEE BT RIE
The amounts represented payments made in PR ABIEEEEmeH
advance to suppliers for purchase of goods. FERG BN 2RIE ©
(iv) Due from associates (iv) EWEZE N TRE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and ZEWE AEER . o8 HiE
have no fixed repayment term. & TE & SN o
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. EBBERBEAFEIEZSH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EE
2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —E-RF
Hiat BT T BETFT
Equity securities-listed in Hong B AZE S —N&EB LT
Kong 24 66,093 -
(@) The fair value of listed equity securities is based on (@) LEMRAZFZATFEIERE
quoted market prices in active markets. RISl mENHE -
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a (b) RERBALEER AEECE—
margin facility of HK$20,816,000 (31 March 2016: BERABEIERHEARBEER
Nil) from a security broker, which is secured by the 20,816,0007( —Z—NE=HA
Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit =+—H: &) UASEREE
or loss with carrying amount of HK$66,093,000 (31 7 #66,093,0000( = F — R F
March 2016: Nil). The facility has been fully utilised ZA=1T—H:®)zEikiExn
at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: Nil). BAFEINEREZ B EEER

H-ZBMEER_T—tF=H
=T HEZBEIR (TR
F=ZA=+—8: &)

(c) The above listed equity securities are fully disposed () Lt EMRABHFESREHRELE
after the end of reporting period. HREZEEE-

FESEBEERARAT 2016-20174F 8 139
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLES

21. BIRE R

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000
—E—tF “TRF

R T BET T

Loans to customers BEFEXR 87,000 -

Accrued interest receivables JE W pE = L2 5,413 -
92,413 -

Impairment allowance on individual

assessment B AT E R E R - -

92,413 -

Analysed as: Zlr=H

Non-current assets SEMBNEE - -

Current assets mENEE 92,413 -
92,413 -

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its REE-—EBREIESRKIEHEKE

outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk. FOBREEERBRERE B

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. B FBmEmiRites -

The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from money REEREBRHMAERNERE

lending business of providing personal loans in Hong EATEEMEWRE RS TTEE

Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BRER(#
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as JERNETNEEEESTOT
follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000
—B—tF T RF

BETFT BETT

Neither past due nor impaired REHASR(E

— Unsecured - A 59,163 -

Less than 1 month past due BERN 2 —1E A - -

1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=EAH 33,250 -

Over 3 months past due mEAE = A A - -
92,413 -

Impaired BB - -
92,413 -

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans
receivable for which impairment loss has been provided
partially or in full as at year end date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of individual customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment on these individual loans is necessary as
these loans receivable were substantially/fully settled
subsequent to the reporting period or there has not been
a significant change in credit quality that these balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not hold any
collateral in respect of the loans receivable.

Kt - RN FABERMEBEEL B
% 2 B 18 B M8 1 Rl FE W & SR A
e

3 48 360 27 7 R (L Y R LA K TR AT
I EHE RN N RBA RS AR -

B 161 BB 37 SR (B ) JE W SR IR B % 2
RAEEBERIEECENEAZTR
Bl - REBELR ARZFRK
BERERHmEMERAR D BHEE
HEEEEVEEANE AREHE
HRINERBAIZHRE  WEZAR
BRI T E B E R AE R E R

R-E—+F=A=1+—H X&£H
I 45 A (R U E SR IR a2 o

FESFREZERAERAT 2016-2017F 3R



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

22. RITHEBRRAE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —TRF

BETFT BETT

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFER S

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23,955 7,444

RITIR SRR E B IRITERF R IAE
SBREUA B, o

23. BARAREMENSRK

Trade payables JETBR K
Accruals JEZTE A
Other tax payables Hfth FE S 18
Other payables HAb
Due to directors e ZEERIA

(i) Aging of trade payables
At the end of the reporting period, the aging
analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date

2017 2016

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—F—tF ZERF

et BE T BETT
(i) 455 18
9,764 2,807

- 2,061

16,667 8,374

(if) - 2,120
26,886 15,380

() EURFZERR
R|EHR EREZAHE
MERRZRE DT T

is as follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —TRF
BT T BT T
Less than 90 days C=NY N 455 18
91 — 180 days 91-180H - -
455 18

(ii) Due to directors

The amounts due to directors are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment term.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017
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24. BORROWINGS 24. B&
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—tF —EREF
KaF BT T BT T
Loan from financial institution - & BB ER —
Secured B 20 20,816 -

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

EEMNREESENT

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—+HF —E—RF
BT T BT T
On demand or within one year REXRS—FA 20,816 -
In the second year FF - -
20,816 -
Portion of loan that are due for repayment —&E& | HEEBERSIKRE
after one year but contain a repayment KB G ViEIE!
on demand clause (shown under current  B)AEREE D
liabilities) - -
Amount due for settlement within 12 4+ — & A A B E 2 ZRIB (B A
months (shown under current liabilities) mHAaR) 20,816 -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The effective interest rate on the borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately 6.13% per

annum.

AEBEBENREENLNETFE

HE - ZT—+tF=-A=+—HBILF
B EBENERENELE6.13% o

FESFREZERAERAT 2016-2017F 3R
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. B&
Note No. of shares HK$ 000
lif3 iy BEFT
Authorised: EE:
At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017, ordinary share of ~ R-Z—7"E=A=T-HRRZE-t%
HKS0.01 each ZA=t-B EREEAR0.01TH
LER 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTRAR:
At 1 April 2015, ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZ-REMA—A  SREEEL0.01
THERR 1,325,452,044 13,254
Shares issued upon placing in August 2015 R-2-1%/\RREME RN (i 88,363,469 883
Shares issued upon placing in September 2015 R-Z-RENAREMEIRG (i) 265,000,000 2,650
At 31 March 2016, ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE-~EZAz1+-R ShEERY
0.01TH E Bk 1,678,815,513 16,787
Shares issued upon placing in September 2016 R-Z-~ENAREMEIRG (i) 335,760,000 3,359
At 31 March 2017, ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZ-t§=B=1-0 SHKEEAE%
0.01THEBR 2,014,575,513 20,146
Note: Hiet

(ii)

(iii)

In August 2015, a total of 88,363,469 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to not less
than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.172
per share. The market value per share at the completion
date of the placing was HK$0.18. The Company raised
approximately HK$15,199,000 before expenses, for
general working capital of the Group. Expenses of
approximately HK$338,000 arising from the placing were
recognised in the share premium account of the Company.

In September 2015, a total of 265,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to not
less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.15
per share. The market value per share at the completion
date of the placing was HK$0.215. The Company
raised approximately HK$39,750,000 before expenses,
for general working capital of the Group. Expenses of
approximately HK$1,135,000 arising from the placing were
recognised in the share premium account of the Company.

In September 2016, a total of 335,760,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to not
less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.10
per share. The market value per share at the completion
date of the Placing was HK$0.17. The Company raised
approximately HK$33,576,000 before expenses, for
general working capital of the Group. Expenses of
approximately HK$991,000 arising from the placing were
recognized in the share premium account of the Company.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017

(ii)

(iii)

R=—Z=—RF)\A & 88,363,469
R ER BB TEBRE RBIE
HRBENT2TZ BIREE T
RANBRENIEEE - RECE TR A B
IR THEABE018T - AR AEE
#)7 #15,199,0007T (REtBIZ) -
BEAEEZ —REEES - ILE
S 4978 #338,0007T B A AN R FH)
B A7 i (BERFESR -

RZZE—RFNA & +265,000,000
BB 0T EBRE BBRE
EEBOISTZEBREE T TALR
NEBIIREE - REETKBHE
T E AB 0215 AR A HE
#4978 139,750,0007T (REHBI)
BEREBEY —EEES -REH
#4975 1,135,0007T B R AR B8
A&7 S5 (B BRFE SR o

R — XF LA & #
335,760,0000% & J% 8 #£0.017C X i@
A% E @RIk TR 010 2 B1K
BEFTLORNBBILILES - N
ExK B EERMEABEK017IT.
RN BIELE 4 1E33,576,0007T (&
SREY)  BIEREEZ—REEE
% o Bl B X 478 85991,000t E R
AR RIE IR 4 B AR FERR o

FRBTOMAERDERBRNDES
HEHZERRFHA -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 18 October 2011. The purpose of the
share option scheme is to enable the directors of the
Company, at their discretion, to recognise and motivate
the contribution of the employees of the Group and to
provide incentives and help the Group in retaining its
existing employees and recruiting additional employees
and to provide them with a direct economic interest in
attaining the long-term business objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants include any employees, consultants,
suppliers or customers of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including any independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Scheme became effective
on 18 October 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme,
upon their exercise may not be in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period
up to the date of grant, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. As at 31
March 2017, 201,457,551 shares (2016: 167,881,551
shares) of the Company, representing 10% (2016: 10%)
of its issued capital, are available for issue under the
Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
in writing within 7 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 per
option in total by the grantee. Any share option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period to be notified by the board
of directors to an eligible participant but may not be
exercised after the expiry of 10 years from the date
of grant of the share option but subject to the early
termination of the Scheme.

26.

8 R RS B
ARFARZE ——F+ A+ B R
— T 8 ([ %3t 81 ) B
B B B ER AL N EFHE
572 B B A K L U B2 55 774
IR G2 B AR ME AR
HRERARBBESRA RES
EBIA R B ROA R B IR AR
AR -

BERZ2EEREARRREMELR
Al EAEE B HEmsEs
MEABREARBZEBILIFRTES-
ZEtBlR—F——F+tAT/\REE
Mo bR IEFTET BIBEBUB KR B
AlZAEIHE B+ FARAER -

BIEZETE) - B BT A AR B H R 1T
FHERESHERNFESEETER a4
RZ NBIBARR B PAEAFIRE 31T
D Z210% - &%t El v B2 H
EEEZEREREZ ARG+ =@
AIEEREA - TERITHRO RS A
EREREZBARREEHITRGH
1% o IR H B iEZ EIRABARAE - &%
ARREEREAS EHE-R=ZF
—tHE=ZA=+—8 " BEZtE"
AN A 2201,457, 551 KD ( = F
— N4 1 167,881,551% )(15 &K A &)
EETRAZI1I0%( = F — N F:
10%) )R] {8877 o

AEREARBREZOBETIRA
NEHREMBRE BAREANRS
ERES XX MBEITHRER
RE-AERSEEANESTEME
FNERFE A BE RS R IR R AT B IR R T (£ 1B
kg BNSEBBIER L E B EF
THEEMRITE  HEZAHEIRATAR L
RIBRSN o
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26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the board of directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer of the option, which must be a
business day, (i) the average of the closing prices of the
Company'’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option, (iii) the average
of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the ten
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of
the option, and (iv) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer.

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no
share options had been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme. There were no share options
outstanding as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately in provident fund managed by independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each
of the employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. Both
the employer’s and the employees’” monthly contributions
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities which undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions
made by the Group to the defined contribution plans was
approximately HK$341,000 (2016: HK$686,000).
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26.

27.

BRESTE (2
BREZITEEREFTSEE 8%
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HATAEE%R T H®RE
RFTEREFIGRHE ¢ (i)A R B IR
ERBERERLERNTEZXA
HB S EREXRMRZ FHRT
B RivARFRONEBEERLE
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BE_ZT—tFR-_FT—RF=A
=+—HLEFE TETABRER
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=+—8  WEEARITEZ BARE -
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AEECLHEEREERAZERES
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

28. IEERIE

TN BHEE 2 RERIBELEHHEE

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000

—T—tF —TRF

BT T BT T

Deductible temporary differences AR R = RE 2,920 92,735
Tax losses MIAE R 158,549 67,095
At end of the reporting period R EHR 161,469 159,830

At 31 March 2017, tax losses of HK$60,785,000 (2016:
HK$10,911,000) arising in Hong Kong have no expiry
date under current tax legislation. The tax losses of
HK$97,764,000 (2016: HK$56,184,000) arising in the
PRC can be used to set off against future taxable profits
of the respective subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years.
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses and deductible temporary
differences because it is uncertain that future taxable
profits will be available against which the Group can
utilise the benefits therefrom.

The unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the
end of the reporting period which can be offset against
future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries for a
maximum of 5 years will expire as follows:

R-ZE—+HF=F=+—8 BER
IMBED RRBIRBEBEEZH
I8 &5 18 A & %60,785,00000( — &
— N4 E#10,911,0000T ) I £ fE
EABR e R AR RELE Z HIBE
188 897,764,000 ( ZF — /N F :
J&#56,184,000T ) 7] A3 PA 3K 85 % Bt
BRARARZRAF 2 ARRERTEF o
REBIWAFZERIEEGE R AR
TR EZEBERECHRBEEE HRA
BEFERNEB R LB ARKRER
HFSE T EMEIR A -

AEBRBERREFBEEL 2 RHE
RNIAE IR AT B LA S AR R B R A
RERRAFZERBORH - AFH A
TEARRfET

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF AN
BT BT T

Year of expiry [ENES
2017 T —+F - 4,049
2018 —E-NF - 6,766
2019 —E-NF 1,488 1,321
2020 —E B 34,156 767
2021 —E-—F 62,120 43,281
97,764 56,184

FESFREZERAERAT 2016-2017F 3R
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors,
it is probable that any undistributed profits are expected
to be retained in the PRC subsidiaries and not to be
remitted out of the PRC in the foreseeable future. The
estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution
of retained profits of these PRC subsidiaries were
Nil (2016: Nil). In addition, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s associates
established in the PRC as the deferred tax impact on

these unremitted earnings was insignificant.

29. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases — the Group

as lessee

The Group leases certain premises under operating lease
commitments. Leases for premises are negotiated for

terms of 1 year (2016: ranging from 1 to 3 years).
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COMMITMENTS (continued) 29.

Commitments under operating leases - the Group
as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

REMEERESB)

RERNAE -FREFER/RFABEA
(#)

RBEHR AEERET AT AL
LA AR LA TS By 8 B B 0 AR SR AR B AR
MRS EERRIT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—tF —T—RF
BT BT T
Within one year R—FR 1,749 3,113
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE—FEERFRN(BIEY
EmF) - 1,652
1,749 4,765
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BB AR S

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties:

BRZFHEA MG RREME D KR
2R/ AR FR AEE R
BT RIS MRS ¢

Related party relationship  Nature of transaction Note 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000
BRI 5 BB 1R REME iz —E—tF —E-RF
BT T BETT
Key management personnel Salaries, allowances and 1,075 1,657
(other than directors) benefits in kind and
FTEEBRAB(EZRIN contribution to defined
contribution schemes
oo 2R BEYHEM
FEHREE 2 1K
Sales of goods AEFIHEE M (i) 1,857 -

(i) The sale of goods were charged to similar customers.
Payments were received from a Company controlled by a
director of a subsidiary of the Company.

(i) ERHERNEUEPKIER-N
RERARRRMERAR ZERZES
A NG
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 1 December 2016, Shenzhen Yuheng Trade
Management Co., Limited (FIFEESEBEFR
2~ |}, “Shenzhen Yuheng”), the Company’'s wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into a series of Contractual
Arrangements with Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Co.,
Ltd ("Jin Yu Tang”), wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Maoji,
an independent third party, for a cash consideration
of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,854,000).The Directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Contractual Arrangements enabled
the Company to have control over Jin Yu Yang and
considered to be a subsidiary of the Group.

A summary of fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired at the respective date of the above
acquisition were as follows:

31. £¥KE66t

g Sl NG|
RZZE—RNE+-_A—B A7
2ENBRARIFIFEESEERR
ARIRYIFE]D ERE D EECE
VE=ZF)ZEBRBZARYTERTE
BEBRAR(ETE DT — &Y
BHZHTENLZHE]D ReREA
A R #15,000,0007C(FH & 7 4978 #&
16,854,0007T)°c AR R EERAEE L
THREARRCIEHETE RIS
BAEEZHBAR -

REREWERE KB ZAER
BERABZ AHERMMT

Fair value at

the date of

acquisition

HK$°000

RWEAH

ATE

BT T

Intangible assets BmEAE 6
Trade receivables JE W BR X 2,569
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hubpelezim - B R RiRs 9,840
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFeEEY 1,735
Other payables and accruals FE &t B A I H e 1~ 5k (2,841)
Net identifiable assets acquired EWE R H R B EFE 11,309
Goodwill (note 17) P (ffaF17) 5,545
Purchase consideration BERE 16,854

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents in

ERMEEEZ R LReFEYON

respect of the acquisition is as follows: /N
Consideration paid in cash ENBEENKE (16,854)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B EWERERREEEYD 1,735

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a subsidiary Yz B B B 2 R & 4 2 B4 ik 1 F 58

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

Included in the revenue and net profit for the period
are HK$2,857,000 and approximately HK$27,000
attributable to the additional business generated by this
newly acquired subsidiary for the period between the
date of acquisition and 31 March 2017.

Had this business combination been effected on 1 April
2016, the revenue of the Group would be approximately
HK$6,037,000 and net profit for the year of the Group
would be approximately HK$45,000. The directors of the
Company consider this “pro-formas” an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group
on an annualised basis and a reference point only for
comparison in future periods.

31.

XBEaotE)

U — R B A 5] (42)

LA E A AR KR RE =T
—tFZ A=+ BHMAELZE
SMEFSEFF ABRRA AT 53
/%78 %2,857,0007T 2 #) 78 #27,000
JC ©

Wt ¥EBAEHR - EMN/—H
TR AEBIKABZLH BB
6,037,0007T & 7~ 5 B 4 € 45 5 4% 49
BABEEA5,000T AR AIEER A
HEBB A EEHERRFLEEZ
EEBMANEZ MEARKREBRELL
BH2EL -
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEMEAAE
(i) Year ended 31 March 2017 - Disposal of (i) 82=—+tH&=A=+—H
Media Magic I FE - HEMedia Magic
On 27 September 2016, the Group disposed of its RZE—RNFLAZ++H &
entire interest in Media Magic to an independent EE/ 4 S REEE 100,000
third party at an aggregate cash consideration of TRA—B2BIE=ZSFTLER
HK$100,000. The details are as follows: Media Magicz 2 ZBAR & - 515

FHyanT
HK$°000
BETT
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE
Property, plant and equipment M - S R E 199
Trade receivables FEWBR R 1,518
Prepayment, deposit and receivables TERTEIE « e KB 5,103
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRKLIE S 68
Trade payables FE T BR SR (18)
Accruals and other payables et B RN EMENR (12,785)
Net liabilities value FBREE (5,915)
Release of exchange reserve BElE KR E G (9,128)
Release of statutory reserve BEVEERE (2,421)
Gain on disposal ez Wam 17,564
Consideration RE 100
Satisfied by: XHAFR:
Cash 2k 100

FHLENBARIELEZRE R
REeFEMRANFEIITWT

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of the subsidiaries is as follow:

HK$'000
BT
Cash consideration WERE 100
Bank balances and cash in subsidiaries HEWB AR ZRITEMR MRS
disposed of (68)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents on HEE4AZEE RELZEMREA
disposal HEE 32

1 52 China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. HEMBAR(£E)

(i) Year ended 31 March 2016 - Disposal of (i) BE=-ZF—X<E=A=+—H
Boomtech LIEFE — Hi£Boomtech
On 27 July 2015, the Group disposed of its entire RZZE—RAFEAZ++tH K
interest in Boomtech to an independent third party SBELAER S R E B 400,000
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$400,000. TRA—2BILE=ZFTEHER
The details are as follows: Boomtechz & B I 1 - FF 1B &

FIEAT
HK$°000
BETT

Net assets disposed of: HEFEE

Property, plant and equipment ER e 164

Trade receivables FEWBR R 4,096

Prepayment, deposit and receivables TERTFIE « R e REWK 4,194

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LA S 1,501

Trade payables FEFBR SR (703)

Accruals and other payables JEET B R N EMENR (11,084)

Tax payable FERT 7518 (2,255)
Net liabilities value FREE (4,087)
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 2,636
Release of exchange reserve B [olfE 5 I E (180)
Release of statutory reserve B RUATE (91)
Goodwill derecognised BB TR 2 2 5,573
Loss on disposal &2 BE (3,451)
Consideration KRB 400
Satisfied by: XRAER:

Cash e 400

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of the subsidiaries is as follow:

ERLEMNBAREEZRE R
ReFEYRLFEINNT

HK$°000
BETT

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash in subsidiaries
disposed of

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents on HEEL 7R NIREEEWRE

disposal

HAeHE

HEMBAR ZRITAEBRLAS

FH

400

(1,501)

(1,101)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
balances and cash, and borrowings. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial instruments such as loan receivables, trade
and other receivables and payables, which arise directly
from its business activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have
been applied to the line items below:

33. sRiEREEREEREEK

AEEZTIZ2omMITABERITER
EBE WEEE -ZEERITAZ
ITZENRRBELERAEEZE
BEE -AKBEHARWEBEEN
AR R N L At R USRI Ko AN R 2
HitemMTHE BERREEEXHEH-

BRSRIAY @i REERN T
KIF :

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —TRF

BT BT T

Loans and receivables at amortised BREBHERAIEREZERRE
cost &N

Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3R B o Ath FE UAGR 141,542 303,385
Loans receivables B ER 92,413 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 23,955 7,444
Total = 257,910 310,829
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E 45 —E—RF

YT BET T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost RE#HER ARz SRERE

Trade and other payables

Borrowings BE
Total &5t

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The Group does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board
of directors generally adopts conservative strategies on
the Group’s risk management and limits the Group’s
exposure to these risks to a minimum.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017

JE AN BR AR S EL AL FE A< R

26,886 12,410
20,816 -
47,702 12,410

AEBERTASIBCEERRARE
ERR - FXERNMRBE SRR -
AEEMETAURREEIERRR
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group's credit
risk is primarily attributable to loans receivables, trade
receivables and bank balances.

A detailed discussion of the Group’s credit risk in respect
of trade receivables and loans receivables are set out
in note 19 and note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. The Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. Management
closely monitors all outstanding debts and reviews
the collectability of trade debtors and loans clients
periodically. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 21% (2016: 52%) and
69% (2016: 99%) of the total trade receivables and
loans receivables were made up by the Group’s largest
customer’s and the five largest customers’ outstanding
balances respectively.

The Group's bank balances are placed with credit-worthy
banks in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
mainly arises from the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on the bank balances and
borrowings . However, the management considers
the Group’s exposure to such interest rate risk is not
significant as bank balances and borrowings are all short-
term in nature. No sensitivity analysis is prepared as the
fluctuation and impact is considered immaterial.

At 31 March 2017, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all loss other variables held constant, would
increase or decrease the group’s loss before taxation by
HK$200,000 (2016: HK$5,000)

33. SRIEMEERERKE &)

EERR

EERRESRIAEZ —HRERET
EEMSHS - HEEUBER AL
BrEERBRTIERBEWRER &
YRR R e SRTT A& 85

AEBABEKRERNERERZ
ERR 2 A mEN A MK
E19 K fIEE21 - REEEENTR A
CERHZEZHEIRG - EEE
SEYEEARAREERRYEH
ERERERERERER 2K E
Mo R KNEERR BLRE IR
FASCRHEEZREABE AEEW
ERREEESAAMERR -

RMERAR ARAEBEHZAEFP K
ABRARBEZAEESR D BIME B
EARERERZBEEN21%(=F
—NEF 1 52%) K69%( —FE— N4 ¢
99%) At A EEFEEFREER

)
AA

AREEZRITHEBIFRR B A LT
BEBRIFZRIT

JES
AEBAT Y BeRALAREER
BT RIS B Y BT R FIR R B
BB AT E AR AT B0 RS B 2
BESlE EEERS AEEZ
EBARRBTA - 3R E R
B T BURE A

RZE—+F=ZA=+—8  &HztH
KRR TS TFH100EES  £F1E
HMEPpREREFTE2BERT
AN £5 (B Bk B4 AT B 48 18 18 hn skt A 4978
#200,000C( — & — N F: B
5,0007T)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining sufficient
level of bank balances and cash to finance the Group’s
operations and expected expansion. The Group's primary
cash requirements include payments for operating
expenses and additions or upgrades of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets.

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the earliest date on which the Group is
required to settle the financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period is summarised below:

33. SRlEREEREERBEK (&

RBESER

AEBEEIRBRER BHZRITHEER
KRR BAKE 2 EH B ER
REES - AKEZIEHEFTRE
EARERXEABELNRENE B
Rt A BB B BTS2 50 -

RBEHR AEBZERMBEZR
BB ZBMERIRIEAEERN
BEMARENERABZHZF A
B BT

2017 2016

- S 3 “5-nE

Total Total

contractual contractual

Total carrying undiscounted Total carrying  undiscounted
value  cashflow  On demand value cash flow  On demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ARRER ANRER
REAE ROREE  REXR  BRESE REREE  RERR
B®fr  E¥Fn E¥Tn B¥Tr B¥Fn BT
Trade and other payables AR R MR 26,886 26,886 26,886 12410 12410 12410
Borrowings g 20,816 20,816 20,816 - - -
47,702 47,702 47,702 12,410 12410 12,410

Exposure to currency risk EusE

The following table details the group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated
using the closing rate at the year end date.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. TRIEKREEREREEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Exposure to currency risk (continued) E¥RER(E)
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
United States United States

(Expressed in Hong Kong thousand dollars) Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
(AB®TRFITR) Eye ARM e ARE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1%  BUE I % 391 196 - 560
Intangible assets BV EE - 91 - 109
Inventory rE - - - 10,018
Trade and other receivables  FE U AR 5 % L 1o B 13K 1,366 130,994 57 13,462
Bank balances and cash RITERERE 22,415 448 - 543
Trade and other payables FE 1 B 3% I E o FE < 3R (6,540) (15,576) - (11,113)
Tax payable FER IR - (9) - -
Exposure arising from ERRAEERBGBELEL

recognised assets and &l f

liabilities 17,632 116,144 57 13,579

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 34. EXRERE

The objectives of the Group’s capital management REBEZEARAEEBRAREAREER
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a B NS EREEERHERE 1
going concern and to provide returns for shareholders. AR EIRHEDR AEEEEEE A
The Group manages its capital structure and makes LR NVEH TR B35 IR B R B AR
adjustments, including payment of dividend to B AR R B & AN 5k 21T IR (D 3k
shareholders, return of capital to shareholders or issue of HEBEUREKEEHK REBEE_-F
new shares or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes —+ERE-RFEF=A=+—081F
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during FEN AEEVYEFNBRE KE
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. SHIZfF o
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

e  Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

J Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

J Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017
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NP ERTE

TREJIREHPRRE BT B RE
ERF 1R AV EFEMRELFE
ERHNEZ=AEEN ATV EFES
MIAEZEREE - A FEFAEMED
ZERT2 RN E M PR 8 A
B BREENEBENER ¢

o BIRMLE: ENAE1RBAR
R(AREEREEBRTIS S E
REEXBEIHRECKER
B))FIEQATE

o FE2QMHE : FMAE2RBABIE
(BT & FE 1R TR B AR
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AR ©
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 35. A EFTE(E)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are TREWNAEENR _ZE—+F=H
measured at fair value at 31 March 2017. =+ —HEREAFEFENEE-

Fair Value Measurement

AP EHE
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

fREE F18R F28R E3M Aot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B¥Tr BETn E¥Tr BETxR

Assets EE
Financial Assets at Fair  #3iB182515 A F(E
Value through profitor R £ @& E

loss 66,093 66,093 - - -
Total assets BERE 66,093 66,093 - - -
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are TREWAEFBR _ZT—F=H
measured at fair value at 31 March 2016. =+ —HERAFEFENEE-

Fair Value Measurement

AF(EEE

Carrying

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FREE F1R FE28 FE3 wmEt

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AETI AETI AETI BAET

Assets BE
Financial Assets at Fair & iB18z31% N A
Value through profitor R &R EE
loss - - - - -

Total assets EESE - - - - -

PEISFEEERERLAT  2016-2017FHK
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent Event

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 10 April 2017, the Company has completed
the placing of 402,900,000 placing shares to
independent third parties, at the placing price of
HK$0.3 per placing share. The net proceed from
the placing are approximately HK$117.4 million.
After the completion, the issued share capital of the
Company is increased to 2,417,475,513 ordinary
shares.

On 25 May 2017, Yu Heng Shipping (Hainan)
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a shipbuilding agreement
with a Shipbuilder, an independent third party, to
construct eight fishing vessels at a consideration
of RMB12.7 million for each new vessel, with
an aggregate consideration of RMB101.6 million
(equivalent to HK$114.1 million). Payment of the
consideration will be made in six installments
according to the stages of construction of the eight
fishing vessels. Up to the date of these consolidated
financial statements, the construction is not
completed.

On 29 May 2017, Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Co.,
Ltd CRINTTEFEZREBR AT (“in Yu Tang”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with two vendors (the
“Vendors"), both are third parties independent to
the Company and its connected persons, in relation
to acquisition of 70% equity interest in Shenzhen
Qisen Fishery Company Limited (“Shenzhen Qisen”),
a company incorporated in the PRC, for a total
consideration of RMB60.9 million (equivalent to
HK$68.4 million).

Shenzhen Qisen is principally engaged in marine
fishing business and holds a ocean fishing license
granted by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC.

The consideration shall be settled by cash of RMB10
million (equivalent to HK$11.2 million) payable
to the Vendors and by issue of the zero coupon
convertible bonds, at a conversion price of HK$0.24
per share with a total of 238,338,000 conversion
shares, in the principal amount of HK$57.2 million
by the Company.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited. Annual Report 2016-2017

36. MEHRER
H%BEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZE—tFMNA+H AQF]
TR EEBERE RN BE
030 M B E=HEE
402,900,000% B & Bz 10  BE &
FESREBEFENABE
117,400,0007T ° FATEAKTE » AR A
AlzBE BITRAEMNME
2,417,475,51 30% & A% o

R-ZE—+FRA-Z+HH F
EmBE(Em)ARAR(AER
ZEEMBAR)E—ZEMRE
(BBME=7 )L —HiEMb
FEUEE \BEEM BEFM
iz R E A ARE12,700,000
T B R E B AR
101,600,0007C( /8 & K & &
114,100,0007T ) ° RE R IEN
MmN EERE D NHX
M- BEZZHFREVBHREA
HY - BEIE R R TTAK ©
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NHEEEREFRAR([EE
BN AEBZ2EHBRR)HE
MEBEBA(BEH] UAEBIR
ARRIREBEALTZE=R)
RAIVEERE AR BERKER
YNFAREAR QBRI
H —RHRPBEFEMEKIZA
A Z70%PHE BREAAR
#60,900,0007C( 18 & B 78 #&
68,400,0007T ) °

RYIMAE ER TR LT
A E R 25
RHTE

REBEBAUEBFETNRESA
K #10,000,0007C (1A E R /B
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

Subsequent Event (continued)

(iv)

On 29 May 2017, the Company has entered into
the subscription agreement with the Subscriber
(an independent third party), Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(chairman, chief executive officer and an
executive Director of the Company) and Mr. Liu
Yi (a substantial shareholder of the Company) as
guarantors, to which the Subscriber has agreed to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$100 million.

The convertible bonds shall carry the rights
to convert into conversion shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share.
A maximum number of 416,666,667 conversion
shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
all conversion rights.

36. HEMREE (@)

MBRBE(E)

(iv)

RZE—+FRAZ-Z+HH K
ARHERBABBLE=7)"
RIEEXRE(RRBERFE 1TH
BERNITEE) RBIZELEE(CK
NA—BEBEREIEAER
AR REHZE B REA
BERERBEASRBABIE
100,000,0007T 2 AT PR (E 5 o

AR E AR Al iR ) S 8
BEERE RN EK0.24T8H
KRR 19 ° 5% %416,666,667 %
BRI ST B IR R 1T
BFACEE R 31T -
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong

37. AQTR ZHBMRRE

REBZERRGIZHKERE AR

Kong Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial BB R R B EEEE Y
position of the Company and the movements in its T
reserves are set out below:
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB—tF —T-RF
HfaF BT T JEBEF T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RSB RRIZKE - -
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H i el sk 1,201 2,393
Due from subsidiaries FEYBH B A Rl ZIE 332,032 298,979
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 291 565
333,524 301,937
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables = AN 3,167 1,055
Due to subsidiaries FEATH B A R FIE 3,624 6,017
6,791 7,072
Net current assets REBEEZRE 326,733 294,865
NET ASSETS EEFE 326,733 294,865
Capital and reserves R R %
Share capital f&% 7 25 20,146 16,787
Reserves i 37(a) 306,587 278,078
TOTAL EQUITY R 326,733 294,865

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by

Liu Rongsheng

Chairman
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wE
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Gan Weiming
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Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

37. KRB W BMRRR (&

(a) Reserves (a) f#&fE
Share  Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
(In HK$'000) (BB TTAEN) Note (Note (i) (Note (i)
\ Rl SRR ZiER At
liF3 (Hizt() (Hrsti)
At 31 March 2015 and at 1 April 2015 R-5-1F=F=1-BR 437,446 594,707 (578,247) 453,906
NZE2-REMA-A
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss ~ EABRRENZEEREE - - (@25,11)  @5171)
for the year
Transactions with equity holders HREREAETZRS
Contributions and distributions AERAT
Issue of shares upon placing in August 2015 EZE-RENAREMEARD 290 13978 - - 13978
Issue of shares upon placing in September 2015 E-E-REARREMEARD  25) 35,965 - - 35,965
49,943 - - 49,943
At 31 March 2016 R-Z-E=R=1-H 487,389 594,707 (804,018) 278,078
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss ~ ERBERENEABRLE - - (687) (687)
for the year
Transactions with equity holders HREREAETZRS
Contributions and distributions AERAT
Issue of shares upon placing in September 2016 E=E—~ENREEMETIA 29,196 - - 29,196
29,196 - - 29,196
At 31 March 2017 RZB-tF=A=+-H 516,585 504,707 (804,705) 306,587
Note: BfaE -
(i) Share premium represents the excess of the net D s (BIg T AR TIIRME

(ii)

(iii)

proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company’s shares over their par value.

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference
between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued as consideration pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation took place in 2001, (ii) the reduction
of share premium and share capital took place in
November 2012 and May 2013 respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the
Company's contributed surplus is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the
requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

As at 31 March 2017, no reserves of the Company
were available for distribution to the equity holders
of the Company (2016: Nil) in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

S ZFEFRRFEXRERD
HmE{EZ A7 -

BABREONRE_TZT—F
HETTH) 2N 5 B S 4E P YRR P 8
RE AR 2 B EE A R(E
MET 2 ANRBBR D EEZZE
B (R ——F+—
ARk —Z—=91 AE{THI
AR AD 48 (B Ko B ALAS

REBARERTEL ARAN
BABBRA DR TR - A
BFTARERBEMRE °

)

R-E—tF=A=+—8"
BEERERRAEAE AR
R 4 A 5 B TR 2 AR
BEAZEE(—F A
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38. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

38. MIEAFE
R=Z—tF=A=+—-0 %2
AXEWBLRZHENT

Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of equity
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ indirectly
registration and registered attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital  the Company Principal activities
HMARY,  ERAZER KARER
WEAREH BRERSERY EE/ZEMRER REED TERK
Business Ahead Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Provision of administration service
BEERARAA BA BT REUER RS
China Marine Life Technology Hong Kong HK$1 100% Inactive during the year
Development Limited
hEEFENBEREERAR BE BEIT TEREEK
(Formerly known as Golden Legend
Electronics Limited AT T £ % =
BRATF)
Golden Thai Marine Products Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding and securities
Limited holding
LR BEEEFRAT BE BT BERERFRES
(Formerly known as Modern Logistics
Limited g1 #&3E KR AR A7)
Global United Investment Consultants Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Provision of money lending service
Limited
BRH-—REBRERRA BE B 2T REEERE
Mindsim Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Inactive during the year
&®  B% 10,0007 TEEERH
Rich Flash Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Investment holding
RABRLA &E B 10,0007 BERE
Wisdom Glory Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Inactive during the year
BRMBRBRAF BA BEAT REEERH
Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Co., The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% Supply chain management services
Ltd *
AYTEEZRERRAR e = HEREERY
10,000,0007T

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016-2017
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e M B ®RNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_-_ZF—+F=A=+—HIF/Z

38. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

38. ffB AT (&)
R=Z—tF=A=+—-0 %2
AXEMBARZHENT (&)

(continued)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of equity
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ indirectly
registration and registered attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital  the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/  ERTZER KAR
WEAR AR BRREey EE/ZRER REBAL TEEH
Shen Zhen Qianhai Yuheng industry The PRC Not yet paid up 100% Provision of supply chain management
chain Co., Ltd* (Note ¢) service, trading of wood, metal and
electronic products
R FEEXBERBR LA i RIS R REHERERRE AM 2ERE
(FizEc) TEMES
Shenzhen Yu Heng SCM LTD.* The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% Provision of supply chain management
service, trading of metal and
electronic products
AT FEHERERBRAF hE AR%1,000,000 REHLEEEERE cERETE
T mE5
Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management The PRC Not yet fully 100% Provision of supply chain management
Co., Ltd* paid up (Note b) service, trading of seafood
R FEESHERBRRA hE HAREER RUERERRY REERES
(FizEb)
Yu Heng Shipping (Hainan) Company The PRC Not yet paid up 100% Provision of ships building service,
Limited* (Note d) however, the operation commenced
subsequent to the year end
FEME (88) ERAR i RIAS R REMMRERD ERZEBRAE
(B5Ed) ERERRE
Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) Fishery Co., Ltd Cambodia ~ US$10,000,000 80%  Provision of ocean fishing, however,
(Note e) the operation commenced subsequent
to the year end
ETERE RER) BRATA FHEE 10,000,000 E 7T RUBIRS BAEBRAEER
(Fizte) #ER
Brilliant Ally Limited (Note a) British Virgin US$1 100% Investment holding
(Mizta) Islands
RERUES E3 BERE

PEISFEEERERLAT  2016-2017FHK
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

38. ffBA B (&)
R=Z—tF=A=+—-0 %2
RAXEMEQRZHEUT (&)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/
registration and registered attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital Principal activities
HMRY, ERAZER
WEARAM BRERCERY EE/HMBER TEXK
Chiki Holdings Limited (Note a) British Virgin Us$1 Property, plant and equipment holding
(Mizta) Islands
RERUES E3 BAENE BERXE
Ever Active International Limited British Virgin Us$1 Property, plant and equipment holding
(Note a) Islands
KEERERAF (Hta) RERUES E3 RENE BERXME
Great Truths Developments Limited British Virgin US$1 Property, plant and equipment holding
Islands
ERERBRAR AERUES 3 RENE BERXE
Jun Chang Holdings Limited (Note a) British Virgin Us$1 Property, plant and equipment holding
Islands
RELRARAF (Hta) RERUES E3 BRAENE BERXE
Media Magic Technology Limited British Virgin US$55,556 Investment holding
(Note a) Islands
EBBRUEE  155556FTT BERE
Power Chance Holdings limited British Virgin US$1 Inactive during the year
Islands
AERUES 3 TEEERH
Yi Yuan Limited (Note a) British Virgin US$1 100% Property, plant and equipment holding
Islands
#RAERAR (KiTa) RERAES E3 BAENE BERXE
Zhao Yong Enterprise Limited (Note a) British Virgin US$1 100% Property, plant and equipment holding
Islands
KKEERRAF (Hita) RERUES 1% RENE BE XM
Zhong Sheng Holdings Limited (Note a) British Virgin US$1 100% Property, plant and equipment holding
Islands
hAERERAR (Mita) RERUES 3 RENE BERXE

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:
(continued)

38. B AT (&)
RZEBE—+tFE=ZA=+—H &2
AXEMBATZHEBOT (&)

Nominal value Percentage

Place of of issued of equity

incorporation/ ordinary shares/ indirectly

registration and registered attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital  the Company Principal activities

HMRY,  ERAEZER KAR
WEAR AR BRREey EE/ZRER REEDL TEER
Multi Channel Technology Limited Hong Kong HKD$100 100% Investment holding

(Note a) (ffi3Fa)
BA BT BERE
Palmpay Technology Co. Ltd. (Note a) The PRC RMB 29,186,000 100%  Provision of payment getway services
and energy management services
EREBBAMRERARF (Hita) hE ARE RS RS R RE R RS
29,186,0007T
Notes: P 55

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

The subsidiaries were disposed during the year ended 31
March 2017.

The registered capital is RMB300,000,000 and paid up
capital is RMB100,505,000, the remaining capital has to
be injected on or before 22 October 2065.

The registered capital is HK$100,000,000 and has to be
injected on or before 1 January 2024.

The registered capital is RMB100,000,000 and has to be
injected on or before 31 December 2046.

The registered capital is USD10,000,000 and paid up
capital is USD3,000,000 during the year ended 31 March
2017.

p=IU3

ZEMBARENBE_T—LF
A=t—RLFEHE-

FEE A A ARE300,000,0005T K
BHEERNAEARKE100,505,000
LM NEARABER_EANAFTA
“+t-HSZEEA

5 it & A & 7% #100,000,0007T I
ARZZE-_NF—A—HxZAE
)\o

M EA R AR 100,000,0007T I
ARZFORFTZA=+T—H%
ZRIEN -

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HI1t%#
& s it & X 510,000,000 7T K& 2
%2 B 7K 5&3,000,0005 7T °

FESFREZERAERAT 2016-2017F 3R

16/



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMNE

Year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ —F—+F=A=1+—HIFFZ

38.

39.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:
(continued)

* English translation of company names is for identification

purpose only. These companies are registered as wholly
foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at any
time during the year.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited_ Annual Report 2016-2017

38.

39.

MEAE (&)
R=B—tF=A=+—H0 &4
RAXEMEQRZHENT (&)

* REFERATRE S EEREEM B
BEELEF -

EREJNHEERRGHAREFE
NEEBREIERFE IBERAKE
BEFEEABNDZIARTME R
Al -EFERRHIEMMNBEBARZE
HesRiEanike
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